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FINANCIAL SECTION 



Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP 
Ce rtif ied Public Acco untants 

Governing Board 
Oakland Unified School Distri ct 
Oakland , Cali fo rnia 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Report on the Financial Statements 

VALUE THE DIFFERENCE 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund , and the 
aggregate remaining fund info rmation of the Oakl and Unified School District (the District) , as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 20 13 , and the related notes to the financial statements, whi ch coll ective ly comprise the District's 
bas ic financial statements as 1 isted in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible fo r the preparation and fa ir presentation of these fi nancial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these fi nancial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America , the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States; and Standards and Procedures for Audits of California K-1 2 Local Education Agencies 
201 2-201 3, issued by the Califo rnia Education Audit Appeals Panel as regulations. Those standards require that 
we plan and perfo rm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fi nancial statements are free from 
materi al misstatement. 

An audit invol ves performing procedures to obtam audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
fi nancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor 's judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the fi nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity ' s preparation and fa ir presentation of the 
financial statements in order to des ign audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of express mg an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the fi nancial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffic ient and appropriate to provide a bas is for our audit 
op1111 ons. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

The accompanying fi nancial statements do not include the fi duciary fund, (the Associated Student Body Fund) as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2013 Presentation of such statements is required in order to comply with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Qualified Opinions 

In our opinion, except for the omission of the fiduciary financial statements, the financial statements referred to 
above present fa irly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each 
major fund , and the aggregate remaining fund information of the District, as of June 30, 2013 , and the respective 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the Un ited States of America require that the management's 
di scussion and analys is and budgetary comparison information be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the bas ic financial statements in an appropriate operational , economic, or hi storical context. We have 
applied certai n limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about 
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management' s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
bas ic financial statements. We do not express an opi nion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audi t was conducted fo r the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the District' s basic financial statements. The supplementary information, as I isted in the table of 
contents, including the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional 
analys is and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The supplementary information is the responsibility of management, was derived from, and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been 
subJected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the bas ic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
In our opinion, the supplementary information, as listed in the tab le of contents, including the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards, is fa irly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards , we have also issued our report dated July 20, 2015 , on our 
consideration of the District's mternal control over fi nancial reporting and on our tests of its compliance w ith 
certa in provisions of laws, regul ations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance . 
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance w ith Government Auditing Standards 111 

considering the District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance . 

~o,J~ IM¥-L 11-+ (.o LLP 
Palo Alto, California 
July 20, 20 15 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

This sect ion of the Oakl and Unifi ed School District's (the District) annual fi nancial report presents our discuss ion 
and analysis of the District's fi nancial performance during the fisca l year that ended on June 30, 2013 . Please read 
it in conj unction w ith the District's fi nancial statements, which im mediately fo ll ow this section. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 

The Financial Statements 

The financial statements presented herein include a ll of the activities of the District as prescribed by 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No . 34. 

The Government-wide Fi nancial Statements present the fi nanc ial pi cture of the Distr ict from the economic 
resources measurement foc us using the accrual bas is of accounting These statements include all assets of the 
Distri ct ( includ ing capital assets), as well as all liabilities (including long-term obligations). Additionally, certain 
eliminations have been made as prescribed by the statement in regards to interfund acti vity, payabl es, and 
rece ivables . 

T he Fund Financial Statements inc lude statements for each of the three categories of acti vities: governmental, 
propri etary, and fi duciary . 

The Governmental Acti vit ies are prepared using the current fi nanc ial resources measurement foc us and modified 
accrual basis of account ing 

The Fiduciary Activities are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting 

Reconci liation of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government-wide Financial Statements is provided to 
explain the differences created by the integrated approach. 

The pr imary unit of the government is the Oakland Unified School District. 

REPORTING THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report info rmat ion about the District as a whole and 
about its activ ities. These statements include all assets and liab ilities of the District using the accrual bas is of 
accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year' s 
revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid . 

These two statements report the District's net pos it ion and changes in them. Net position is the difference between 
assets and deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources , which is one way to 
measure the District' s fi nanc ial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the District' s net 
pos ition wi ll serve as a useful indicator of whether the fi nancial pos ition of the District is improving or 
deter iorating. Other facto rs to consider are changes in the District's property tax base and the condition of the 
Distr ict's fac ilities . 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

The relationship between revenues and expenses is the District' s operating results. Since the governing board' s 
responsibili ty is to prov ide services to our students and not to generate profi t as commerc ial entities do, one must 
consider other fac tors w hen evaluat ing the overall hea lth of the Distr ict. The quality of the education and the 
safety of our school s w il l likely be an important component in this evaluation. 

In the Statement of Net Pos ition and the Statement of Activiti es , we report the District activ ities as follows 

Governmental Activities - The Distr ict reports a ll of its serv ices in this category . This includes the education of 
kindergarten through grade twelve students, adul t education students, the operat ion of child development 
activities , and the on-go ing effort to improve and mainta in buildings and s ites . Property taxes , state income taxes, 
user fees , interest income, federal, state, and local grants, as well as general obligation bonds, finance these 
activ it ies. 

REPORTING TH E DISTRICT'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fu nd fi nancial statements prov ide detailed info rmati on about the most s ignificant funds - not the District as a 
whole. Some funds are required to be established by state law and by bond covenants. However, management 
establi shes many other fu nds to help it control and manage money fo r part icul ar purposes or to show that it is 
meeting legal responsibiliti es for us ing ce tiai n taxes , grants, and other money that it rece ives from the 
U S Department of Education. 

Governmental Funds - Most of the D istrict's bas ic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on 
how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are availabl e for spending. 
These fu nds are reported using an accounting method call ed modified accrual accounting, which measures cash 
and all other fi nancial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements prov ide a 
detailed short-term view of the District's general government operations and the bas ic services it provides. 
Governmental fund info rmation helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be 
spent in the near future to finance the District' s programs. The differences of results in the governmental fund 
financial statements to those in the government-wide fi nancial statements are expl ained in a reconciliation 
fo llowing each governmental fu nd fi nanc ial statement. 

Proprietary Funds - When the District charges users for the serv ices it prov ides , whether to outside customers or 
to other departments w ithin the Distr ict, these services are genera lly reported in proprietary fund s. Proprietary 
fu nds are reported in the same way that all act ivities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position. We use an internal serv ice fund s (a 
component of proprietary funds) to report activities that prov ide supplies and serv ices fo r the District 's other 
programs and activities, such as the D istrict' s Se lf- Insurance Fund . The internal serv ice fund is reported with 
governmental activ it ies in the government-w ide fi nancial statements . 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

THE DISTRICT AS A TRUSTEE 

Reporting the District's Fiduciary Responsibilities 

The District is the trustee, or fid uciary, for funds held on behalf of others, such as funds resulting from Payroll 
related activities. The District does not report on Associated Student Body (ASB) funds and they are not included 
in our reporting of the fiduci ary fund s. The District's fiduciary activities are reported in a separate Statement of 
Net Assets and Liabilities . We exclude these act ivities from the District's other financial statements because the 
District cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The District is responsible for ensuring that the assets 
reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• Total ending fund balance for the District ' s general fund (which includes Fund 17, Special Reserve for 
Other than Capital Outlay) as of June 30, 20 13, was $37 million . The General Fund's fund balance 
decreased approximately $7.6 million . 

• The District's ending avai lable reserves were $ 19.26 million, which exceeds both the state mandated 2% 
reserve (approx imate ly $84 million) and the governing board's minimum 3% reserve requirement of 
$12.3 million . 

• Government-wide revenues increased by $61.66 million to a total of $588 .7 million. Total revenue 
exceeded expenses by $64.28 million . 

• The District incurred capitalized fac ilities and construction costs of $894 million. 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE 

Net Position 

The District's net position was $115.19 million at fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. $79.35 million was invested in 
capital assets net of related debt, $100.25 million was restricted, leaving an unrestricted deficit of $(64.41) 
million . Restricted net position is reported separately to show legal constraints from debt covenants and enabling 
legislation that limit the governing board's ability to use net position for day-to-day operations. Our analysis 
below, in summary form , focuses on the net position (Table 1) and change in net position (Table 2) of the 
District's governmental activities. 

Table 1 

(Amounts in millions) 

Assets 

Current and other assets 

Capital assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities 
Current portion of long-term obligations 

Long-term obi igations 

Total Liabilities 

Net Position 

Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

*20 12 column does not include the impact of prior period adjustments. 

Governmental 

Activities 

2013 2012* 

$ 285.34 $ 314.19 

783 63 716.59 

l ,068.98 1,030 78 

106.97 

22 .67 

824.14 

953.79 

79 .35 

100.25 

(64.41) 

$ 115 .19 

112 .20 

19 .94 

846.40 

978.54 

33 .51 

80 .93 

(62.20) 

$ 52 .24 

The $115.19 million in net position represents the accumulated results of all past years' operations Unrestricted 
net position - the part of net position that can be used to finance day-to-day operations without constraints 
established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal requirements , remains in a deficit position, and 
that deficit increased by $2 21 million. It should be noted that the unrestricted deficit includes significant 
liabilities such as the state emergency apportionment loan ($59 5 million), compensated absences of $7 .8 million, 
and the IBNR reserve for workers compensation claims of $374 million . 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Changes in Net Position 

The results of this year's operations for the Distr ict as a whole are reported in the Statement of Activities on page 
13. Table 2 takes the informa tion from the Statement, rounds off the numbers, and rearranges them slightly so you 
can see our total revenues for the year. 

Table 2 

(Amounts in millions) 

Revenues 

Program revenues : 

Charges for services 

Operating grants and contributions 

Capital grants and contributions 

General revenues : 

Federal and State a id not restricted 

Taxes 

Other general revenues 

Total Revenues 

Expenses 

Instruction 

Instruction-related 

Student support services 

Administration 

Maintenance and operations 

Interest on long-term obi igations 

Other 

Total Expenses 

Change in Net Position 

*20 12 column does not include the impact of prior period adjustments. 

Governmental Activities 

Governmental Activities 

2013 2012* 

$ 1.13 $ 0.31 

16435 164.28 

77 .53 16.38 

145 .89 169.44 

183 .02 164.28 

16.84 12.41 

588.76 527.10 

254.17 242.47 

80 .25 83.22 

44 .90 44 .05 

28.48 19.28 

67 .94 62 .28 

41.50 39 .57 

7 .24 10 .61 

524.48 501.48 

$ 64 .28 $ 25 .62 

As reported in the Statement of Activities on page 14, the cost of all of our governmental activities this year was 
$524.48 million. However, the amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities through local 
taxes was $183 .0 million because the cost was paid by other governments and organizations who subsidized 
certain programs with grants and contributions in the amount of $241.9 million . We paid for the remaining 
"public benefit" portion of our governmental activities with $ 145 . 9 mill ion in federal and state funds , and $18 0 
million with other revenues, like interest and general entitlements . 

In Table 3, we have presented the cost and net cost of each of the District's largest functions . As discussed above, 
net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the District's taxpayers by each of these functions . 
Providing this information allows our citizens to consider the cost of each function in comparison to the benefits 
they believe are provided by that function . 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Table 3 

Instruction 
School administration 
Pupil services 
Administration 
Maintenance and operations 
Interest on long term debt 
Other 

Total 

THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS 

$ 

$ 

Net Cost of Services 
2013 2012 

106.6 $ 150.8 
52 .7 49.0 
16 .5 16.2 
22 .8 14.9 
46 .0 46.1 
41.5 39.6 
(4 6) 4.1 

281.5 $ 320 .6 

As the District completed this year, our governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $184 79 million, 
which is a decrease of $20.46 million from last year, after adjusting the beginning fund balance for the impact of 
prior period adjustments (Table 4 ), which is primarily the result of spending bond proceeds on capital 
improvement in the Building Fund. 

Table 4 

(Amounts in millions) 

Julyl , 2012 Revenues Expenditures June 30, 2013 
General * $ 44.66 $ 409.17 $ 416.73 $ 37.10 
Building 74.24 0.53 36.83 37.94 
Bond Interest and Redemption* 44 .94 6142 55.34 5101 
Adult Education 0.87 172 2.07 0.52 
Cafeteria 2.43 17.35 18.29 149 
Capital Facilities 7.61 4.89 8.51 3.99 
Child Development 0.38 12 .33 12.39 0.32 
County School Facilities 27.89 77.89 56.79 48 .99 
Deferred Maintenance 0.99 2.10 0.63 246 
Special Reserve, Capital 1.24 4.95 5.22 0.96 
State School Building 0 00 0 00 0.00 0 00 
Tax Override 0.01 (0 .01) 

Total $ 205 25 $ 592.33 $ 612 79 $ 184.79 

*Beginning balances refl ect prior period ad.iustrnents 

9 



OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Over the course of the year, the District revises its budget as it attempts to dea l with unexpected changes in 
revenues and expenditures . A sched ule showing the District's or iginal and fina l budget amounts compared with 
amounts actually paid and received is provided in our annual report on page 53 . 

CA PIT AL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

At June 30, 2013 , the District had $783 63 million in a broad range of capital assets (net of depreciation), 
including land, buildings, furniture , and equipment. This amount represents a net increase of $67.04 million or 
9%, from last year (Table 5) 

Table 5 

(Amounts in millions) 

Land and construction in progress 

Buildings and improvements 

Equipment 

Total 

Long-Term Obliga tions 

Governmental Activities 

2013 2012 

$ 114 .36 $ 213.94 

666 .74 499 .76 

2 .53 2.89 

$ 783 .63 $ 71 6.59 

At the end of this year, the District had $740.43 mi llion in bonds outstanding versus $755 .52 million last year, a 
decrease of $15 million or 2 00%. Total long-term debt consisted of: 

Table 6 

(Amounts in millions) Governmental Activities 

2013 2012 

General obligation bonds 
(financed with property taxes) $ 740.43 $ 755 .52 

Emergency apport ionment Loan 59.48 64 .32 

Other 9.55 9.6 1 

Total $ 809.46 $ 829.45 

Other obligations include compensated absences payable and other long-term obligations . We present more 
detai led information regarding our long-term obligations in Note 9 of the financial statements . 

10 



OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

ECONOMIC FACTORS 

Agreement with Teachers' Union and Pay Increase for All Employees - In early June 2013, the District and 
Teachers' Union reached an agreement without impasse, mediation or arbi tration. The essential terms of the OEA 
agreement are: I) 2.35% one-time for all members, including substitutes; 2) 1.5% ongoing increase for all 
members, including substitutes; 3) 0.5% ongoing increase for all members, including substitutes (contingent on $7 
million in addi tional ongo ing unrestri cted State funds usable for general salary increase) All employees rece ived 
the pay increase. 

In May of 20 15, the District, the Teacher's Union (OEA) and the admi nistrators union (U AOS), agreed to salary 
increases and other terms of their respective contracts . Parts of the agreements are contingent on additional 
resources . The District continues to negotiate with the remaining uni ts. 

Local Control Funding Formula - Cali fo rnia's passage of the Local Control Funding Formula ("LCFF") 
provides more stabi lity and pred ictability of State funding to the District LCFF distributes resources to school 
Districts th rough a base funding grant per unit of daily attendance ("ADA"), with additional supplemental funding 
to certain Districts beginning in fiscal year 20 13-1 4. LCFF will be implemented over eight years. Because of the 
District 's high concentration of English language learners , students from low-income families and foster youth, 
the District anticipates an increase of approximately $8 .2 million in State funding in 20 13-14, $30.6 million in 
20 14-1 5, and $38 .2 million in 20 15-1 6 (per LCFF Calculator June 2015) . 

Parcel Tax - November 2014 Election - On November 4, 20 14, the voters of Oakland passed a parcel tax known 
as "Oakland Unified School District College and Career Readiness for All Fund." The proceeds from the parcel 
tax wi ll be used to provide Oakland high school students with real-world work and learning opportunities; prepare 
students for admission to the University of Califo rnia and other four -year coll eges; expand mentoring, tutoring, 
counseling, support services, and transiti on to job training programs, among other programs. The parcel tax is a 
$120 per parcel tax on real estate owned in Oakland, except low-income homeowners and senior homeowners. 
The parcel tax will provide additi onal funding of $12 million. 

1025 Damage - On January 7, 20 13, a substantial water leak occurred on the top floor of the District's (the 
"District") Paul Robeson Administration Building, located at 1025 2nd Avenue, causing excessive flooding on all 
fo ur floors and signifi cant damage to the entire structure. As a result of thi s water damage, the Paul Robeson 
Administration Building was vacated and staff relocated to leased space at the Trans Pacific Center, l 000 
Broadway. The lease payments fo r 1000 Broadway are covered by the insurance settlement through December 
20 15. 

General Obligation Bonds - In August 2013 , the District issued $120 mill ion in general obligation bonds at 
interest rates ranging from 4.000% to 6.300%. The bonds have maturity dates through August 1, 2038 . 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is des igned to provide our citizens, taxpayers, students, and investors and creditors with a 
general overview of the District' s finances and to show the District's accountabili ty fo r the money it receives. If 
you have questi ons about this report or need any additional fi nancial information, please contact: 

Vernon Hal 
Senior Business Officer 

Oakland Unified School District 
1000 Broadway, Suite 680 

Oakland , CA 94607 

Or visit our website at: wwwousd.k 12.ca.us 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2013 

ASSETS 
Deposits and investments 

Receivables 

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 

Interest payabl e 

Deferred revenue 

Claims liability 

Current loans 

Current portion of long-term obligat ions 

Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations 

Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted 

Debt service 

Capital proj ects 

Educational programs 

Unrestricted 
Total Net Position 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financ ial statements. 
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Governmental 

Activities 

$ 215 ,814,402 

69,527,929 

783 ,633,65 1 

1,068,975,982 

48 ,912,32 1 

16,825,094 

1,232,806 

37,355,8 10 

40,000,000 

22 ,672,847 

786,786,268 
953 ,785 , 146 

79 ,352,79 l 

34, 186,666 

53,94 1,015 

12, 124,820 

(64,4 14,456) 
$ 115, 190,836 



OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Program Revenues 
Charges for Operating Capital 

Functions/Programs Expenses 

Services and 

Sales 

Grants and Grants and 

Contributions Contributions 

Net (Expenses) 
Revenues 

and Changes 
in Net Position 

Governmental 

Activities ------
Governmental Activities 

Instruct ion 
Instruct ion-related acti vities : 

$ 254, 169,642 $ 216,678 $ 69,840,731 $ 77,533 ,374 $ ( 106,578 ,859) 

Supervis ion of instructio n 
Instructional library , med ia, 
and technology 

School site administration 
Pupil serv ices 

Home-to-school transportat ion 
Food services 
All other pupil services 

Administration : 
Data process ing 
A ll other administration 

Plant services 

Anc illary services 

Community serv ices 

Enterprise serv ices 

Interest expense 

Other outgo 
Total 

46,06 1,322 

1,297,822 
32 ,890,943 

11 ,083 ,9 14 
18,295,749 
15,521 ,543 

5,653 ,886 
22 ,826,796 

56,548,985 

11,389,944 
454,009 

2,847, 124 

4 1,499,509 

3,938 ,542 
$ 524,479,730 

85,476 

480,827 
323,997 

13,346 

7, 164 

2, 146 
$ 1, 129,634 

22,544,009 

25,732 
4,848,942 

5,529,863 
15 ,448,956 
6,652,796 

5,708 ,338 

12,072,507 
9,856,789 

11 ,82 1,449 
$ 164,350, 112 

General revenues and subvent ions: 
Property taxes , lev ied fo r general purposes 
Property taxes, lev ied for debt service 
Taxes lev ied for other specific pu rposes 

$ 77,533 ,374 

Federal and State a id not restricted to specific purposes 
Interest and investment earn ings 
lnteragency revenues 
Miscellaneous 

Subtotal, Genera l Revenues 
Change in Net Position 
Net Position - Beginning 
Prior Period Adjustments 
Net Position - Beginning, as Restated 
Net Position - Ending 

The accom panying notes are an integral part of these fina nc ia l statements. 
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(23 ,5 I 7,313) 

( I ,272,090) 
(27,956,525) 

(5 ,554,05 I ) 
(2 ,365,966) 
{8 ,544, 750) 

(5 ,653,886) 
{1 7, 105, 11 2) 

(44,469,3 14) 

( 1,533,155) 
(454,009) 

(2 ,847, 124) 

(4 1,499,509) 

7,885,053 
(28 1,466,6 10) 

99,622,562 
57,979,5 16 
25 ,420,552 

145,885,74 7 
311 ,2 12 
617,307 

15,908,067 

345,744,963 
64,278,35 3 
52,244,705 
( 1,332,222) 
50,9 12,483 

$ 11 5, 190,836 



OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30, 2013 

County School Bond Interest Non major Total 

General Building Facilities and Redemption Governmental Governmental 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds 
ASSETS 

Deposits and 
investments $ 46,342,900 $ 4 1,383 ,590 $ 54,366,023 $ 50,980,6 12 $ 11 ,57 1,708 $ 204,644,833 

Receivables 63 ,50 1, 188 28,36 1 74 1 31, 148 5,966,350 69,527,788 
Due from other funds 7,038 ,31 1 1,2 19,042 8,257,353 

Total Assets $ 11 6,882,399 $4 1,411 ,95 1 $ 54,366,764 $ 5 1,0 11 ,760 $ 18,757,100 $ 282 ,429,974 

LIA BILITIES AND 

FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities 

Payables $ 37,348,597 $ 3,469,53 1 $ 5,374,727 $ $ 1,983 ,638 $ 48, 176,493 

Due to other fu nds 1,2 19,042 7,0 17,620 8,236,662 
Other current 
I iab il ities 40,000,000 40,000,000 
Deferred revenue 1,2 12,465 20,34 1 1,232,806 

Total Liabilities 79,780, 104 3,469,53 1 5,374,727 9,021 ,599 97,645 ,96 1 
Fund Balances 

Nonspendable 133 ,657 133 ,657 
Restricted 10,3 15,466 37,942,420 48 ,992,037 5 1,0 11 ,760 6,758 ,332 155,020 ,0 15 
Committed 2,983 ,628 2,983 ,628 
Assigned 7,389,840 7,389,840 
Unassigned 19,263,332 ( 6,459) 19,256,873 

Total Fund Balances 37, 102,295 37,942 ,420 48,992,037 51 ,0 11 ,760 9,735,50 1 184,784,0 13 

Total Liabilities and 
Fund Balances $ 116,882,399 $4 1,4 11 ,95 1 $ 54,366,764 $ 5 1,0 11 ,760 $ 18,757, 100 $ 282,429,974 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fi nancial statements. 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net 
Position are different than amounts reported in the Governmental Funds 
Balance Sheet because of the fo ll owing items 

Tota l Fund Balance - Governmental Funds 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported as assets in governmental funds. 

The cost of capital assets is 

Accumulated depreciation is 

Net capital assets 

In governmental funds, unmatured interest on long-term ob ligations is 
recognized in the period when it is due . In the government-wide 
financia l statements, unmatured interest on long-term obligations is 
recognized when it is incurred. 

An internal service fund is used by the District's management to charge 
the costs of the workers' compensation and dental insurance programs 
to the individual funds . The assets and liabilities of the mternal service 
fund are included in the Statement of Net Position. 

Long-term obi igations, including bonds payable , are not due and payab le 

in the current period and , therefore, are not reported as I iabil ities in the 
governmental financial statements. Long-term obi igations at year-end 
consist of the fo llowing: 

General obligation bonds (net of bond premiums of $1 ,798 ,280) 

Emergency apportionment loan 

Compensated absences 

Total long-term ob ligations 

Net Position - Governmental Activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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1,061 ,835 ,560 

(278 ,201 ,909) 

742 ,223 ,280 

59,48 1,827 

7,754,008 

$ 184,784,013 

783 ,633 ,651 

(16,825 ,094) 

(26,942,6 19) 

(809,459,115) 

$ 115,190,836 



OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

County School Bond Interest 'onmajor Total 
General Building Facilities and R edemption Governmental Governmental 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds 
REVENUES 

Revenue limit sources $ 194,494,027 $ $ $ $ $ 194 ,494,027 
Federa l sources 52 ,471 ,720 3,352,727 18,782, 166 74 ,606,6 13 
Other state sources 124,322,562 77,533 ,374 52 1,074 14,698 ,040 2 17,075 ,050 
Other local sources 37,344,909 525,62 1 360,4 16 57,544,56 1 6,740,954 102 ,5 16,46 1 

Total Reve nues 408 ,633 ,2 18 525,62 1 77,893,790 61 ,4 18,362 40,22 1, 160 588,692, 15 1 
EX PENDITURES 
Current 

Instruction 233 ,424,80 I 9,339,2 19 242 ,764,020 
Instruction-related activities : 

Supervision of instruction 42 ,806,380 I, 11 7,903 43 ,924,283 
Instructional library, med ia 
and technology 1,237,45 1 1,237,45 1 

School site administrat ion 28,283 ,722 3,080,2 15 3 1,363,937 
Pupi l services: 

Home-to-school transportation I 0,569,67 1 10,569,671 
Food services 120,0 13 17,322,49 1 17,442,504 
All other pupil services 14,787,509 13,716 14,801 ,225 

Adm inistration : 
Data processing 5,391 ,572 5,391 ,572 
All other ad ministrat ion 2 1,413 ,280 354,2 14 2 1,767,494 

Plant services 36, 175,787 106,826 12,093 ,489 48,376, 102 
Faci li ty acq uisi tion/construction 290,905 34,732 , 126 56,683 ,830 3,517,78 1 95,224,642 
Anci llary services 10,863 , 189 10,863 ,189 
Community services 432 ,945 432,945 
Other outgo 3,938 ,542 3,938,542 
Enterprise serv ices 15,4 17 15,41 7 

Debt service 
Principal 4,841,764 15,095 ,000 19,936,764 
Inte rest and other I, 135 ,239 40,249,755 4 1,384,994 

Total Expenditures 415 ,728 , 187 34,732, 126 56,790,656 55,344,755 46,839,028 609,434,752 
Excess (Deficiency) of 
Revenues Over Expenditures (7,094,969) (34,206,505) 2 1, 103 ,134 6,073 ,607 (6 ,617 ,868) (20 , 742,60 I) 
Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Transfers in 537, 196 3,093 ,782 3,630,978 
Transfers out ( 1,000,000) (2,093,782) (264,067) (3 ,357,849) 

Net Fin ancing Sources (Uses) ( 462,804) (2,093 ,782) 2,829,7 15 273, 129 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (7,557,773) (36,300,287) 2 1,103 , 134 6,073 ,607 (3 ,788 , 153) (20,469,472) 
Fund Balance - Beginning 45 ,219,763 74 ,242,707 27,888 ,903 45,710,680 13,523,654 206,585,707 
Prior Period Adjustments (55 9,695) (772,527) ( 1,332,222) 
Fund Balance -
Beginning as restated 44,660,068 74,242,707 27,888,903 44,938 , 153 13,523 ,654 205 ,253 ,485 
Fund Balan ce - Ending $ 37, 102,295 $ 37,942,420 $ 48 ,992,037 $ 51 ,0 11 ,760 $ 9,735,50 I $ 184,784,0 13 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF 
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Amounts reported fo r governmental activit ies in the Statement of Activities 
are different than amounts reported on the Governmental Funds Statement 
of Revenues, Expendi tures, and Changes in Fund Balances because of the 

fo llowing items: 

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

Capital outlays to purchase or build capi tal assets are reported in governmental 
fu nds as expenditures; however, for governmental activities, those costs are 
shown in the Statement of Net Pos iti on and allocated over the ir estimated 
useful lives as annual deprec iat ion expenses in the Satement of Acti vities . 

This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeds deprec iation in the 
period. 

Cap ital outlays 
Deprec iat ion expense 

In the Statement of Activities, certa in operat ing expenses, 

such as compensated absences, are measured by the amounts 
earned dur ing the year. In the governmental fu nds, however, 
expenditures for these items are measured by the amount of 
fi nancial resources used - the amounts actually paid . 

Payment of principal on long-term obligations is an expenditure in the 
governmental funds, but it reduces long-term obligations in the 
Statement of Net Pos ition and does not affect the Statement of Activities. 

Interest on long-term obligations is recorded as an expendi ture in the funds 

when it is due; however, in the Statement of Activities, in te rest expense is 
recogni zed as the interest accrues, regardless of when it is due. 

An 111ternal service fund is used by the District's management to charge the 
costs of the self-insurance programs to the individual fu nds. The net revenue 
of the Internal Service Fund is reported with governmental activ ities . 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fi nanc ial statements . 
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89,423 ,763 
(22,3 78 ,098) 

$ (20,469 ,4 72) 

67,045 ,665 

53,486 

19,936,764 

( 114,51 5) 

(2, 173,575) 

$ 64,278,353 



OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

PROPRIETARY FUND - SELF INSURANCE 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2013 

ASSETS 
Deposits and investments 
Receivables 

Total Current Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable, vendor 
Accounts payable, payroll 
Due to General Fund 
Claim liabil ities 

Total Current Liabilities 

NET DEFICIT 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financ ial statements. 
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Governmental 
Activities -

Internal 
Service Fund 

$ 11 ,169,569 
141 

11 ,169,710 

718,486 
17,342 
20,69 1 

37,355,810 
38,11 2,329 

$ (26,942,6 19) 



OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND NET POSITION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

OPERATING REVENUES 

In-district premiums 

Other local revenue 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 

Payro ll costs 

Change in est imates 

Cla ims expense 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Loss 

NON OPERA TING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 

Interest income 

Transfers out 

Total Nonoperating Loss 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position - Beginning 
Net Position - Ending 

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of these financia l statements. 
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Governmental 

Activities -

Internal 

Service Fund 

$ 16,249,750 

40,021 

16,289,771 

858,443 

470,920 

16,886,765 

18,216, 128 

( 1,926,357) 

25 ,9 11 

(273 , 129) 

(247,218) 

(2, 173,575) 
(24,769,044) 

$ (26,942,6 19) 



OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
ST A TEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash receipts from premiums 

Other operating cash receipts 

Cash payments fo r insurance claims 

Cash payments to empl oyees for serv ices 

Cash payments for interfund transfers out 
Net cash used in operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest on investments 

Net Cash Prov ided by Investi ng Activ ities 

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending 

RECONCILIA TYON OF OPERA TING LOSS TO 
NET CASH USED IN OPERA TING ACTIVITIES 

Operating loss 

Interfund transactions 

Change in accounts payables 

Change in claims liabi li ty 

NET CASH USED IN OPERA TING ACTIVITIES 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fi nancial statements. 
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Governmental 
Activities -

Internal 
Service Fund 

$ 16,249,750 

40,021 

(16,556,859) 

(842,775) 

(252,438) 

( 1,362,301) 

40,459 

40,459 

( 1,32 1,842) 

12,491 ,411 

$ 11 , 169,569 

$ ( 1,926,357) 

(252,438) 

345,574 

470 ,920 
$ (1 ,362,30 1) 



OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

FIDUCIARY FUND 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2013 

ASSETS 
Deposits and investments 

Receivables 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Due to General Fund 

Due to other agencies 

Total Liabilities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

22 

Payroll 

Revolving 

Agency 

Fund 

$ 17,9 18,003 

152,767 

$ 18,070,770 

$ 5,772,6 18 

12,298 , 152 

$ 18,070,770 



OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Financial Reporting Entity 

The Oakland Unified School District (the Distr ict) was organized in 1855 under the laws of the State of California 
and unified in 1952. The District operates under a locally elected seven-member Board form of government and 
provides educational serv ices to grades K-12 as mandated by the State and Federal agencies . During the 2012-13 
school year, the District operated 54 elementary schools, 17 middle schools, 12 high schools, 10 alternative 
school s, 5 Program for Exceptional Children centers, and 3 Continuation schools. 

A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units, and other organizations that are 
included to ensure the financia l statements are not mi sleading. The primary government of the District consists of 
all funds , depatiments , boards, and agencies that are not lega lly separate from the District. For Oakland Unified 
School District, this includes general operations, food service, and student related activities of the District. The 
District has approved various student body organizations to operate at its schools. However, fiduciary fund assets 
and liabilities for these student body organizations are excluded from these financial statements . 

Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting 

The accounting system is organi zed and operated on a fund bas is. A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting 
entity with a self-balancing set of accounts, which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities 
or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrict ions, or limitations . The District's 
funds are grouped into three broad fund categories: governmental , proprietary, and fiduciary . 

Governmental Funds Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are 
financed . Governmental fund repotiing focuses on the sources, uses, and balances of current financial resources. 
Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purposes for which they may 
or must be used . Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be paid . The difference between 
governmental fund assets and liabilities is reported as fund balance. The following are the District's major and 
nonmajor governmental funds : 

Major Governmental Funds 

General Fund The General Fund is the chief operating fund for all districts It is used to account for the ordinary 
operations of the District. All transactions, except those accounted for in another fund , are accounted for in this 
fund . 

Certain funds currently defined as spec ial revenue funds in the California State Accounting Manual (CSAM) do 
not meet the GASB Statement No. 54 special revenue fund definition. Specifically, Fund 17, Special Reserve 
Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects, is not substantially composed of restricted or committed revenue 
sources. While the fund is authorized by statute and wi ll remain open for internal reporting purposes, it functions 
effectively as an extension of the General Fund, and accordingly has been combined with the General Fund for 
presentation in these audited financial statements. 

Building Fund The Building Fund is a capital projects fund that exists primarily to account separately for 
proceeds from the sale of bonds (Education Code Section 151 46) and may not be used for any purposes other 
than those for which the bonds were issued . 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

County School Facilities Fund The County School Fac ilities Fund is establi shed pursuant to Education 
Code Section 17070.43 to receive apportionments from the 1998 State School Facilities Fund (Proposition 
IA), the 2002 State School Fac ilities Fund (Propos ition 47), the 2004 State School Facilities Fund 
(Propos ition 55), or the 2006 State Schools Facilities Fund (Propos ition ID) authorized by the State 
All ocation Board fo r new school fac il ity constructi on, modern ization projects, and facility hardship grants, as 
provided in the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998 (Education Code Section 17070 et seq.). 

Bond Interest and Redemption Fund The Bond Interest and Redemption Fund is a debt service fund used 
for the repayment of bonds issued for a di strict (Education Code Sections 15 125 -1 5262). 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Special Revenue Funds The Spec ia l Revenue funds are used to account fo r the proceeds from specific revenue 
sources (other than trusts, major capita l proj ects, or debt service) that are restricted or committed to 
expenditures fo r spec ifi ed purposes and that compose a substantial port ion of the inflows of the fund 
Additional resources that are restricted, committed, or ass igned to the purpose of the fund may also be reported 
in the fund 

Adult Education Fund The Adult Education Fund is used to account separate ly for federal , state, and local 
revenues for adul t educat ion programs and is to be expended fo r adult educat ion purposes only . 

Child Development Fund The Child Development Fund is used to account separately fo r federal, state, 
and local revenues to operate chil d development programs and is to be used only fo r expenditures for the 
operation of child development programs 

Cafeteria Fund The Cafeteria Fund is used to account separately fo r federal, state, and local resources to 
operate the food service program (Education Code Sections 38090-38093) and is used only fo r those 
expenditures authorized by the governing board as necessary for the operation of the District's food service 
program (Education Code Sections 3809 1 and 38 100) . 

Deferred Maintenance Fund The Deferred Maintenance Fund is used to account separately for state 
apportionments and the District's contribut ions for deferred maintenance purposes (Education Code 
Sections 17582-17587) and fo r items of maintenance approved by the State A ll ocation Board . 

Debt Service Funds The Debt Service funds are used to account for the accumulation of restricted, committed, 
or ass igned resources for the payment of principal and interest on general long-term debt 

Tax Override Fund The Tax Override Fund is used for the repayment of voted indebtedness ( other than 
Bond Interest and Redemption Fund repayments) to be fi nanced from ad valorem tax levies . 

Debt Service Fund This fund is used for the accumulation of resources for and the retirement of principal and 
interest on general long-term debt 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Capital Projects Funds The Capital Projects fund s are used to account fo r fi nancial resources that are restricted, 
committed, or ass igned to the acquisition or construction of major capital fac ili ties and other capital assets (other 
than those fi nanced by proprietary fund s and trust funds) 

Capital Facilities Fund The Capital Fac ili ties Fund is used primarily to account separately fo r monies 
received fro m fees lev ied on developers or other agencies as a condition of approving a development 
(Education Code Sections 17620-17626). Expenditures are restri cted to the purposes specified in Government 
Code Sections 65970-6598 1 or to the items spec ified in agreements with the developer (Government Code 
Section 66006) . 

State School Building Lease-Purchase Fund T he State School Bui ld ing Lease-Purchase Fund is used 
primarily to account separately fo r state apportionments fo r the reconstruction, remodeling, or replacing of 
existing schoo l buildings or the acquisiti on of new school sites and buildings, as provided in the Leroy F. 
Greene State School Building Lease-Purchase Law of 1976 (Education Code Section 17000 et seq.). 

Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects The Spec ial Reserve Fund fo r Capital Outl ay Proj ects 
ex ists primar ily to prov ide fo r the accumulat ion of General Fund monies for capital outl ay purposes 
(Education Code Secti on 42840) . 

Proprietary Funds Propri etary funds are used to account fo r act ivities that are more business-I ike than 
government-like in nature. Business-type activ it ies include those fo r which a fee is charged to external users or to 
other organizational units of the local education agency, normally on a full cost-recovery bas is. Proprietary fund s 
are generally intended to be se lf-supporting and are class ified as enterpr ise or internal service. 

Internal Service Fund Internal Service funds may be used to account for goods or services provided to other 
funds of the District on a cost-re imbursement bas is. The District operates a workers' compensation program 
and a dental program that are accounted fo r in an internal serv ice fund 

Fiduciary Funds Fiduciary fund s are used to account for assets held in trustee or agent capacity fo r others that 
cannot be used to support the District' s own programs. 

Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilit ies) and do not involve measurement of results of 
operations. Such funds have no equity accounts since all assets are due to individuals or entities at some future 
time. The District's agency fund exists pri marily to account separate ly for amounts coll ected from empl oyees for 
federal taxes, state taxes, and other payroll related items. 

Basis of Accounting - Measurement Focus 

Government-Wide Financial Statements The government-w ide fi nanc ial statements are prepared using the 
economic resources measurement foc us and the accrual bas is of accounting. This is the same approach used in the 
preparation of the proprietary fund fi nancial statements, but differs from the manner in which governmental fund 
fi nancial statements are prepared. 

The government-wide statement of act ivities presents a comparison between expenses, both direct and indirect, 
for each governmental function, and excludes fiduciary activity . Direct expenses are those that are spec ifically 
associated with a service, program, or department and are , therefore, clearly identifiabl e to a particular function. 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

The District does not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the Statement of Activities, except for 
depreciation. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipients of the goods or services offered by the 
programs, and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular program . Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues . The 
comparison of program revenues and expenses identifies the extent to which each program is self-financing or 
draws from the general revenues of the District. El iminations have been made to minimize the double counting of 
internal activities. 

Net posi tion should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on net asset use are either externally 
imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation . The net position 
restricted for other activities result from special revenue funds and the restrictions on their net asset use. 

Fund Financia l Statements Fund financia l statements report detailed information about the District. The focus of 
governmental and proprietary fund financial statements is on major fund s rather than reporting funds by type . 
Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single 
column. The internal service fund is presented in a s ingle column on the face of the proprietary fund statements . 

Governmental Funds All governmental funds are accounted for using the flow of current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus , only current 
assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues , 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances reports on the sources (revenues and other financing sources) and 
uses ( expenditures and other financing uses) of current financi al resources . This approach differs from the 
manner in which the governmental activities of the government-wide financial statements are prepared. 
Governmental fund financial statements, therefore, include reconciliations with brief explanations to better 
identify the rel ationship between the government-wide financial statements, prepared using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, and the governmental fund financial 
statements, prepared using the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. 

Proprietary Funds Proprietary funds are accounted for using the flow of economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of this 
fund are included in the statement of net position. The Statement of Changes in Fund Net Position presents 
increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets . The statement of cash flows provides 
information about how the District finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary fund . 

Fiduciary Funds Fiduciary funds are accounted for using the flow of economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basi s of accounting. Fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial 
statements because they do not represent resources of the District. 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Revenues - Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions Revenue resul ting from exchange transactions, in 
which each party gives and rece ives essentially equal value, is recorded on the acc rual basis when the exchange 
takes pl ace. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are 
measurable and become ava il abl e. Ava il abl e means that the resources w ill be coll ected within the current fi scal 
year, or are expected to be coll ected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liab ilities of the current fi scal year. 
Genera lly, ava il abl e is defined as co ll ectible within 45 or 60 days. However, to achieve comparability of reporting 
among Cali fo rn ia districts, and so as not to di stort normal revenue patterns wi th spec ific respect to reimbursement 
grants and correct ions to state-aid apportionments, the Califo rn ia Department of Education has defined avail abl e 
fo r districts as coll ectible w ithin one year. The fo ll owing revenue sources are considered to be both measurable 
and available at fisca l year-end State apport ionments , interest, certain grants, and other local sources. 

Non-exchange transactions, in which the Distr ict rece ives va lue without d irectly giving equal value in return, 
include property taxes, certa in grants, entitlements, and donat ions. Revenue from property taxes is recognized in 
the fi scal year in which the taxes are received. Revenue fro m certain grants, entitlements, and donations is 
recognized in the fi scal year in which all elig ibil ity requirements have been sati sfi ed. Eligibility requirements 
include time and purpose restrictions. O n a mod ified acc rual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must 
also be avai labl e before it can be recognized. 

Deferred Revenue Deferred revenue arises when potent ial revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and 
"availab le" criteria fo r recogniti on in the current peri od or when resources are rece ived by the District prior to the 
incurrence of qualify ing expenditures . In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognit ion cr iteria are met, or 
when the District has a legal claim to the resources, the li ability fo r deferred revenue is removed from the balance 
sheet and revenue is recognized . 

Certain grants received before the eligibility requirements are met are recorded as deferred revenue. On the 
govermnental fund fi nancial statements, rece ivables that will not be coll ected within the available period are also 
recorded as deferred revenue. 

Expenses/Expenditures On the accrual bas is of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are 
incurred. The measurement foc us of governmental fu nd accounting is on decreases in net financial resources 
( expend itures) rather than expenses . Expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in which the 
related fund liability is incurred, if measurabl e, and typi cally paid within 90 days . Principal and interest on long­
term obl igations, which has not matured, are recognized when paid in the goverm11ental funds as expenditures. 
Allocations of costs, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in the govermnental funds but are 
recognized in the government-w ide statements. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The District's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition . Cash equivalents also 
incl ude cash with county treasury balances for purposes of the statement of cash flows. 
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Investments 

Investments held at June 30, 2013 , are stated at fair value. Fair value is estimated based on quoted market prices 
at year-end . All investments not required to be reported at fa ir value are stated at cost or amortized cost. Fair 
va lues of investments in county and state investment pools are determined by the program sponsor. 

Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets arise when restrictions on their use change the normal understanding of the availability of the 
asset. Such constraints are either imposed by creditors, contributors, grantors, or laws of other governments or 
imposed by enabling legislation . 

Prepaid Expenditures 

Prepaid expenditures (expenses) represent amounts paid in advance of receiving goods or services. The District 
has the option of reporting an expenditure in governmental funds for prepaid items either when purchased or 
during the benefiting period . The District has chosen to report the expenditures when paid . 

Capital Assets and Depreciation 

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets associated w ith a fund are determined by its 
measurement focus . Capital assets are long-li ved assets of the District. The District maintains a capitalization 
threshold of $5,000 . The District does not possess any infrastructure . Improvements are capitalized; the costs of 
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset's life are not 
capitalized, but are expensed as incurred. 

When purchased, such assets are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds and capitalized in the 
government-wide Statement of Net Position. The valuation basis for capital assets is historical cost, or where 
historical cost is not available, estimated historical cost based on replacement cost. Donated capital assets are 
capitalized at estimated fair market value on the date donated . 

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method . Estimated useful lives of the various classes of 
depreciable capital assets are as fo llows buildings, 25 to 50 years; building improvements, 20 years; equipment, 5 
to 20 years. 

Interfund Balances 

On fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are classified as 
interfund receivables/payables. These amounts are eliminated in the governmental column of the statement of net 
position, except for the net residual amounts due between governmental and business-type activities, which are 
presented as internal balances. 
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Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences are accrued as a liabili ty as the benefits are earned . The entire compensated absence 
li ability is reported on the government-wide Statement of Net Position . For governmental funds, the current 
porti on of unpaid compensated absences is recogn ized upon the occurrence of re levant events such as employee 
resignations and retirements that occur prior to year-end that have not yet been pa id w ith expendabl e avail abl e 
fi nanc ial resources . These amounts are reported in the fund fro m which the empl oyees who have accumulated 
leave are paid . 

Sick leave is accumulated w ithout lim it for each employee at the rate of one day fo r each month worked. Leave 
w ith pay is provided when employees are absent fo r health reasons; however, the empl oyees do not gain a vested 
right to accumul ated sick leave. Employees are never paid fo r any s ick leave balance at termination of 
empl oyment or any other t ime. Therefore, the value of accumulated sick leave is not recognized as a liability in 
the District' s financial statements. However, credit fo r unused sick leave is applicabl e to all class ified school 
members. At ret irement, each member wi ll rece ive .004 year of service credit fo r each day of unused sick leave. 
Credit for unused sick leave is applicabl e to all certificated employees and is determ ined by dividing the number 
of unused sick days by the number of base service days required to compl ete the last school year, if employed 
full-time. 

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations 

All payabl es, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligat ions are repo1ted in the government-w ide and proprietary 
fund financial statements. In general, governmental fund payabl es and acc rued liabilit ies that, once incurred, are 
pa id in a timely manner and in fu ll from current financ ial resources are reported as obligations of the 
governmental funds. 

However, claims and judgments, compensated absences, special termination benefi ts, and contractually required 
pension contributions that w ill be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the governmental 
fund financial statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current year. Bonds, capital 
leases, and other long-term obligations are recognized as liabili ties in the governmental fund fi nancial statements 
when due. 

Current Loans 

Current loans consist of amounts outstanding at June 30, 20 13, fo r tax revenue and anticipation notes. The notes 
were issued as short-term obligations to prov ide cash flow needs . This liability is offset with cash deposits in the 
county treasurer, which have been set as ide to repay the notes . 

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

As of June 30, 20 13, fund balances of the governmental fu nds are class ified as follows: 

Non-spendable - amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in non-spendable form or because they 
are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact 
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Restricted - amounts that can be spent only fo r spec ific purposes because of consti tutional provisions or 
enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, 
or the laws or regulati ons of other governments. 

Committed - amounts that can be used only fo r specific purposes determined by a formal action of the 
governing board . The governing board is the highest level of decision-making authori ty for the District. 
Com mitments may be established, modified , or resc inded only through reso lutions or other action as 
approved by the governing board . 

Assigned - amounts that do not meet the cri teria to be class ified as restri cted or committed but that are 
intended to be used fo r spec ific purposes. Under the District' s adopted policy, only the governing board or 
chief business officer/ass istant superintendent of business services may ass ign amounts for specific purposes . 

Unassigned - a ll other spendabl e amounts. 

Spending Order Policy 

When an expend iture is incurred fo r purposes for wh ich both restri cted and unrestricted fund balance is available, 
the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which 
committed, ass igned, or unass igned fund balances are ava il able, the District considers amounts to have been spent 
first out of committed funds, then assigned fu nds, and fi na lly unassigned fu nds, as needed, unless the governing 
board has prov ided otherw ise in its commitment or ass ignment actions. 

Minimum Fund Balance Policy 

ln fisca l year 20 10-11 , the govern ing board adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the General Fund in order 
to protect the district against revenue shortfa ll s or unpredicted one-time expenditures The policy requires a 
Reserve for Economic Uncerta inties consisting of unass igned amounts equal to no less than three percent of 
General Fund expenditures and other fi nancing uses. 

Net Position 

Net position represents the difference between assets and liab ilities . Net position net of investment in capital 
assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
borrowings used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as 
restricted when there are limitat ions imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the 
Distri ct or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regul ations of other 
governments. The District firs t applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes fo r which 
both restri cted and unrestricted net pos ition is availabl e. 
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Self-Insurance Obligation 

The Self-Insurance Fund is used to account for the District's self-insurance obligation related to workers' 
compensation and dental claims. Funding of the self-insurance obligation is based on estimates of the amounts 
needed to pay prior and current year claims. The District is self-insured for workers ' compensation up to 
$250,000 per occurrence. The general fund is charged premiums by the self-insurance fund , which is accounted 
for as an internal service fund The District participates in joint power agreements which provide excess liability 
and excess workers ' compensation coverage to the District. The District also participates in a joint powers 
agreement for its property insurance coverage. In the government-wide financial statements, the internal service 
fund activity is eliminated to avoid doubling of revenues and expenses. 

Operating Revenues and Expenses 

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the proprietary 
funds . For the District, these revenues are in-district premiums to pay for insurance premiums. Operating 
expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the good or service that is the primary activity of the fund All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

lnterfund Activity 

Transfers between governmental and business-type acti vities in the government-wide financial statements are 
reported in the same manner as general revenues. 

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as expenditures/expenses in 
the purchaser funds . Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment are 
reported as interfund transfers. lnterfund transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental 
funds and after non-operating revenues/expenses in proprietary funds Repayments from funds responsible for 
particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented in the financial 
statements. lnterfund transfers are eliminated in the governmental and business-type activities columns of the 
Statement of Activities, except for the net residual amounts transferred between governmental and business-type 
activ ities. 

Estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts 
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 

Budgetary Data 

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the California Education Code and requires the governing 
board to hold a public hear ing and adopt an operating budget no later than July I of each year. The District 
governing board satisfied these requirements . The adopted budget is subject to amendment throughout the year to 
give consideration to unanticipated revenue and expenditures primarily resulting from events unknown at the time 
of budget adoption with the legal restriction that expenditures cannot exceed appropriations by major object 
account 
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The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts when the 
origi nal appropriations were adopted . The amounts reported as the final budgeted amounts in the budgetary 
statements reflect the amounts after all budget amendments have been accounted for. For budget purposes, on 
behalf payments have not been included as revenue and expenditures as required under generally accepted 
accounting principles . 

Property Tax 

Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are payable in two 
installments on November I and February I and become delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respective ly. 
Unsecured property taxes are payable in one installment on or before August 3 1. The County of Alameda bill s 
and collects the taxes on behalf of the District. Local property tax revenues are recorded when received . 

New Accounting Pronouncements 

In March 2012 , the GASB issued Statement No. 65 , Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. This 
Statement establi shes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outfl ows of 
resources or deferred inflows of resources , certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and 
recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certai n items that were previously reported as assets 
and liab ilities . The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after 
December 15, 2012. 

In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement No . 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions- an 
amendment of GASE Statement No. 27. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and 
financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions . It also improves information provided by state 
and local governmental employers about financial support for pensions that is provided by other entities The 
scope of this Statement addresses accounting and fi nancial reporting for pensions that are provided to the 
employees of state and local governmental employers through pension plans that are administered through trusts 
that have the certain defined character ist ics. This Statement is effective for fisca l years beginning after June 15, 
20 14 . 

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

Summary of Deposits and Investments 

Deposits and investments as of June 30, 20 13, are class ified in the accompanying financial statements as fo llows: 

Governmental funds 
Self-insurance fund 

Fiduciary funds 
Total Deposits and Investments 
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Deposits and investments as of June 30, 2013 , consist of the following : 

Cash on hand and in banks 
Cash in revolving 

Investments with the County Treasurer 
Total Deposits and Investments 

Policies and Practices 

$ 641 ,132 
133 ,657 

232,957,616 
$ 233,732,405 

The District is authorized under California Government Code to make direct investments in local agency bonds, 
notes, or warrants within the State; U.S. Treasury instruments; regi stered state warrants or treasury notes; 
securities of the U S government, or its agencies; bankers acceptances; commercial paper; certificates of deposit 
placed with commercial banks and/or sav ings and loan companies ; repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements; 
medium term corporate notes; shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies, 
certificates of participation, obligations with first priority security; and collateralized mortgage obligations . 

Investment in County Treasury - The District is considered to be an involuntary participant in an external 
investment pool as the District is required to deposit all receipts and collections of monies with their county 
treasurer (Education Code Section 4100 I) . The fair value of the District's investment in the pool is reported in the 
accounting financial statements at amounts based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by 
the county treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio) . The balance 
avai lable for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintai ned by the county treasurer, which is recorded 
on the amortized cost basi s. 
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General Authorizations 

Stipulated by the California Government Code, limitations as they relate to interest rate risk, credit ri sk, and 
concentration of credit risk are indicated in the schedules below: 

Maximum Maximum Maximum 

Authorized Remaining Percentage Investment 

Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer 

Local Agency Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None 

Registered State Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None 

US Treasury Obligations 5 years None None 

U.S . Agency Securities 5 years None None 

Banker's Acceptance 180 days 40% 30% 
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10% 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None 
Repurchase Agreements I year None None 
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% of base None 
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 5 years 30% None 
Mutual Funds NIA 20% 10% 
Money Market Mutual Funds NIA 20% 10% 

Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% None 

County Pooled Investment Funds NIA None None 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) NIA None None 
Joint Powers Authority Pools NIA None None 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate ri sk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to 
changes in market interest rates. The District manages its exposure to interest rate risk by investing substantially 
all of its cash and investments in the county pool. 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the ri sk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. 
This is measured by the ass ignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The 
District's investments in the county pool are not rated as of June 30, 2013. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The investment policy of the District contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer 
beyond the amount stipulated by the California government code. 
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Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits 

This is the risk that in the event of a bank fa ilure, the District's deposits may not be returned to it. The District 
does not have a policy for custodial credit risk for deposits. However, the California government code requires 
that a financia l institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an 
undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental 
unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110 percent of the total 
amount deposited by the public agency. Californ ia law also al lows financial institutions to secure public deposits 
by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes havi ng a value of 150 percent of the secured public deposits and letters 
of credit issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco havi ng a value of 105 percent of the secured 
deposits. As of June 30, 2013, the District believes it is not exposed to any significant custod ial credit risk. 

NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES 

Governmental fund receivables at June 30, 2013 , consisted of intergovernmental grants, entitlements, interest and 
other local sources. All receivables are considered collectibl e in full 

County School Bond Interest Nonmajor Total 
General Building Facilities and Redemption Governmental Governmental 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds 
Federal Government 

Categorical aid $ 13,090,830 $ $ $ $ 4,365,66 1 $ 17,456,491 
State Government 

Apportionment 18,039,11 4 18,039,114 
Categorical aid 14,227,056 706,733 14,933,789 
Lottery 3,388,326 3,388,326 

Interest 36,602 74 1 31 ,148 7,403 75 ,894 
Other local sources 8,946,642 28,36 1 886,553 9,86 1,556 
Payro ll revol ving 5,772,618 5,772,618 
Total Receivables $ 63 ,50 1,188 $ 28,36 1 $ 74 1 $ 31,148 $ 5,966,350 $ 69,527,788 
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NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity fo r the fisca l year ended June 30, 2013 , was as follows : 

Balance 
July 1, 20 12 Additions 

Governmental Activities 
Capital assets not being deprec iated 

Land $ 17,701 ,767 $ 
Construction in process 196,236,3 74 79,285,105 

Total capital assets not being deprec iated 213 ,938,141 79,285 ,105 

Capital assets being depreciated 
Buildings 697,088,336 170, 135,075 
Land improvements 47,4 16,977 18,355,273 
Equipment 13,968,343 510,985 

Total cap ita l assets being deprec iated 758,473 ,656 189,001 ,333 

Less accumul ated depreciation 
Bui ldings 220, 136,923 19,569,768 
Building improvements 24,608 ,27 1 1,940,234 
Equipment 11 ,078 ,617 868,096 

Total accumulated depreciation 255 ,823,811 22,378,098 
Governmental Activities -
capital assets, net $ 716,587,986 $ 245 ,908,340 
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Balance 
Deductions June 30, 20 13 

$ $ 17,70 1,767 
178 ,862,675 96,658 ,804 
178 ,862,675 11 4,360,57 1 

867,223 ,4 11 
65 ,772 ,250 
14,479,328 

947,474,989 

239,706,69 1 
26,548,505 
11 ,946,71 3 

278 ,20 1,909 

$ 178 ,862,675 $ 783 ,633,65 1 
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Depreciation expense was charged as a direct expense to governmental functions as follows: 

Governmental Activities 
Instruction 
Superv ision of instruction 
Instructional I ibrary media and technology 
School admin istration 
Pupil transportation 
Food services 
Other pupil services 
Anci llary services 
Community services 
Enterprise 
Other general administrat ion 
Data processing serv ices 
Plant maintenance and operations 

Total depreciation expense, governmental activities 

NOTE 5 - INTERFUN D TRANSACTIONS 

Interfund Receivables/Paya bles (Due To/Due From) 

$ 11 ,434,049 
2,142,365 

60,521 
1,530,8 12 

515,525 
855,372 
722,113 
528,068 

21 , 11 6 
865,33 1 

1,06 1,942 
262,968 

2,377,916 
$ 22,378,098 

lnterfund receivable and payable balances arise from interfund transactions and are recorded by all funds affected 
in the period in which transactions are executed . lnterfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2013 , 
between major and nonmajor governmental funds , and internal service funds are as fo ll ows: 

Due From 
General Fund 
Nonrnajor Governmental Funds 
Proprietary Funds 

Total interfund receivable and payables 

Due To 
Nonmajor 

General Governmental 
Fund Funds 

$ $1 ,219 ,042 
7,017,620 

20,691 
$7,038,311 $ 1,2 19,042 

Total 
$1 ,2 19,042 

7,0 17,620 
20,69 1 

$8,257,353 

The balances resulted from the time lag between the date that ( I ) interfund goods and services are provided or 
reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transaction are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments between 
funds are made 
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Operating Transfers 

Tnterfund transfers are used to ( I) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to 
the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt serv ice from the funds 
collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and (3) use unrestricted 
revenues coll ected in the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance 
with budgetary authorizations. 

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 20 13, consisted of the fo ll owing: 

Transfer From 
Nonmajor Internal 

General Building Governmental Service 
Transfer To Fund Fund Funds Funds 

General Fund $ $ $ 264,067 $ 273,129 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 1,000,000 2,093,782 

Total interfund transfers $ 1,000,000 $2,093,782 $ 264,067 $ 273,129 

The General Fund transferred to the Adult Education Fund to support adult education programs. 

The Chi ld Development Fund transferred State loan payments to the General Fund pursuant 
to the mu! ti-year fisca l recovery plan. 

The Cafeteria Fund transferred State loan payments to the General Fund pursuant 
to the multi-year fisca l recovery plan. 

The Deferred Maintenance match is funded by the Building Fund. 
The Self-I nsurance Fund returned premiums to the General Fund. 
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Total 
$ 537, 196 

3,093,782 
$ 3,630,978 

$ 1,000,000 

57,224 

206,843 
2,093,782 

273,129 
$ 3,630,978 
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NOTE6-ACCOUNTSPAYABLE 

Governmental fund accounts payable at June 30, 20 13, consisted of the fo llowing: 

County School Nonmajor 
General Building Facilities Governmental 

Fund Fund Fund Funds 
Vendor payables $ 23 ,753 ,532 $ 3,447,840 $ 5,374,727 $ 1,865,50 1 
State apportionment 3,987,234 
Salaries and benefits 7,5 15 ,928 2 1,69 1 118,137 
Other significant payables 2,09 1,903 

Total accounts payable $ 37,348,597 $ 3,469,53 1 $ 5,374,727 $ 1,983 ,638 

NOTE 7 - DEFERRED REVENUE 

Deferred revenue at June 30, 20 13, cons ists of the fo ll owing 

Nonmajor 
General Governmental 

Fund Funds 
Federal fi nancial ass istance $ 183 ,664 $ 
State categorical aid 477,393 20,34 1 
Other local 551 ,408 

Total deferred revenue $ 1,2 12,465 $ 20,341 

NOTE 8 - REVENUE ANTICIPATION LOANS 

Total 
Governmenta l 

Funds 
$ 34,441 ,600 

3,987,234 
7,655 ,756 
2,091 ,903 

$ 48, 176,493 

Total 
Governmenta l 

Funds 
$ 183 ,664 

497,734 
55 1,408 

$ 1,232 ,806 

As of July 1, 2012, the District had outstand ing revenue anticipation notes in the amount of $45,000,000, which 
matured on August 31 , 20 12. On Apri l 30, 2013 , the District issued $40,000,000 of revenue anticipation notes 
bearing interest at 0. 16 percent and maturing October 1, 20 13. The notes were issued to supplement cash flows . 
Changes in the outstanding liabi lities for the revenue antic ipation notes are as fo llows: 

Outstanding Outstanding 
Issue Date Rate Maturity Date July 1, 2012 Additions Payments June 30, 2013 

May 29, 20 12 0.32% August 31 , 20 12 $ 45,000,000 $ $ 45,000,000 $ 
Apr il 30, 2013 0.16% October 1, 2013 40,000,000 40,000,000 

$ 45 ,000,000 $ 40,000,000 $ 45,000,000 $ 40,000,000 
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NOTE 9- LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

Summary 

The changes in the District's long-term obligations during the year consisted of the following : 

July I, 2012 Deductions June 30, 2013 
General obi igation bonds $ 755 ,520,000 $ 15,095 ,000 $ 740,425,000 
General obligation bond premiums 1,798 ,280 1,798,280 
Emergency apportionment loan 64,323,591 4,841,764 59,481,827 
Compensated absence, net 7,807,494 53,486 7,754,008 

Total long-term obligations $ 829,449,365 $ 19,990,250 $ 809,459,115 

Current 
Portion 

$ 17,745,000 

4,927,847 

$ 22,672,84 7 

Payments on the general obligation bonds are made by the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund with property tax 
revenues which are used so lely to repay the principal and interest due on these obligations Payments on the 
Emergency Apportionment Loan will be made by the General Fund. The accrued vacation will be paid by the 
fund for which the employee worked. 
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Bonded Debt 

The outstanding general obi igation bonded debt is as fo ll ows : 

Bond Issuance Issue Date Maturi ty Date 
Election of 2000 - Series 2002 Mar-02 Aug-26 
Electi on of 2005 - Series 2005 Aug-05 Aug-30 
Election of 2006 - Series 2006 Nov-06 Aug-3 1 
2007 Refunding Jul-07 Aug-25 
Election of 2006 - Series 2009 A Jul-09 Aug-29 
Election of 2006 - Series 2009 B Jul-09 Aug-34 
Electi on of 2006 - Series 2009 C Jul-09 Aug-24 
Election of 2006 - Series 20 12 A Mar-1 2 Aug-32 
Elect ion of 2006 - Series 20 12 B Mar- 12 Aug-33 

Bond Issuance July 1, 20 12 Issued 
Election of 2000 - Seri es 2002 $ 92,145 ,000 $ 
Election of 2005 - Series 2005 128 ,695 ,000 
Election of 2006 - Series 2006 11 3,800,000 
2007 Refunding 180,880,000 
Election of 2006 - Series 2009 A 87,885 ,000 
Election of 2006 - Series 2009 B 70,795 ,000 
Election of 2006 - Seri es 2009 C 26 ,320,000 
Election of2006 - Seri es 20 12 A 3 1,040,000 
Elect ion of 2006 - Series 20 12 B 23 ,960,000 

$ 755 ,520,000 $ 

4 1 

Inte rest Rate Original Issuance 

2.4-5 .25% $ 100,000,000 

3 0-5 0% 14 1,000,000 

4 .25-5 0% 130,000 ,000 

3.75-5 0% 199,240,000 

4 .0-6 .5% 87,885,000 

9.50% 70,795 ,000 
2 .82% 26,320,000 

3.00-5.55% 3 1,040,000 
6.88% 23 ,960,000 

$ 8 1022402000 

Redeemed June 30, 20 13 

$ 1,480,000 $ 90,665 ,000 
4,925 ,000 123,770,000 
1,305 ,000 11 2,495 ,000 
7,385 ,000 173 ,495 ,000 

87,885 ,000 
70,795 ,000 
26,320,000 
31,040,000 
23 ,960,000 

$ l 5,095 ,000 $ 740,425,000 



OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity 

The general obligation bonds mature through 2035 as follows 

Fiscal Year Principal 
2014 $ 17,745,000 
2015 19,875 ,000 
2016 22,890,000 
2017 22,445 ,000 
2018 24,830,000 

2019-2023 172, I 00,000 
2024-2028 252,365,000 
2029-2033 153,395 ,000 
2034-2035 54,780,000 

Total $ 740,425 ,000 

State of California Emergency Apportionment Loan 

Interest to 

Maturity Total 

$ 39,958 ,388 $ 57,703 ,388 

39,061 ,607 58,936,607 

38,066 ,644 60,956,644 

36,983 ,082 59,428 ,082 

35,790,144 60,620,144 

156,665,634 328,765 ,634 

99,562 ,229 351 ,927,229 

46,538 ,137 199,933 ,137 

3,794,515 58,574,515 

$ 496 ,420,380 $ 1,236,845 ,380 

On January 3, 2003 , Senate Bi ll 39, Chapter 14, Statutes of 2003 , was enacted . This legis lation provided an 
emergency apportionment loan to the District of $100,000,000 

The California Department of Education authorized the State Administrator to use these funds to offset the cost of 
audit findings , technology enhancements and the associated loan payment of the drawdown . The legislation 
requires the District repay the loan, including interest at a rate of 1.778%, which is the rate earned by the State ' s 
Pooled Money Investment Account on the effective date of Senate Bill 39. The bill provides that the loan be 
repaid over a 20-year period . 

Repayment of the loan commenced in 2003-04 and matures through 2026 as follows 

Emergency Apportionment Loan 

Interest to 
Fiscal Year Principal Maturity 

2014 $ 4,927,847 $ 1,057,587 
2015 5,015 ,467 969,970 
2016 5, I 04,642 880,795 
2017 5, 195,403 790,034 
2018 5,287,777 697,660 

2019-2023 27,883 ,016 2,044, 168 
2024-2026 6,067,675 217,034 

Total $ 59,481 ,827 $ 6,657,248 

42 

Total 

$ 5,985 ,434 

5,985,437 

5,985,437 
5,985,437 

5,985,437 
29,927,184 

6,284,709 
$ 66, 139,075 



OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE 10- FUND BALANCES 

Fund balances are composed of the fo llowing elements: 

County School Bond Interest Nonmajor Total 
General Building Facilities and Redemption Governmenta l Governmenta l 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds 
Nonspendable 

Revolving cash $ 133,657 $ $ $ $ $ 133,657 
Total Nonspendable 133,657 133,657 

Restricted 
Legally restr icted 
programs 10,3 15,466 I 0,315,466 

Child development 31 7,040 317,040 
Child nutri tion 1,492,3 14 1,492,3 14 
Capital projects 37,942,420 48,992,037 4,948 ,978 91,883 ,435 
Debt services 5 1,0 11 ,760 5 1,0 11 ,760 

Total Restricted 10,315,466 37,942 ,420 48,992,037 5 1,0 11 ,760 6,758,332 155 ,020,0 15 

Committed 
Cap ital proj ects 2,463 ,699 2,463,699 
Adult Education 519,929 5 19,929 

Total Comm itted 2,983,628 2,983,628 

Ass igned 

Audit Findings and 
one time items 4,064,568 4,064,568 
Deferred 
apportionment 
reserve 2,594,905 2,594,905 

Early retirement 730,367 730,367 
Total Ass igned 7,389,840 7,389,840 

Unass igned 
Reserve for 
economic 
uncertai nties 12,299,577 12,299,5 77 
Remaining 
unass igned 6,963,755 (6,459) 6,957,296 

Total Unass igned 19,263 ,332 (6 ,459) 19,256,873 
Total Fund Balance $ 37,102,295 $ 37,942,420 $ 48,992,037 $ 5 1,0 11 ,760 $ 9,735,50 1 $ 184,784,0 13 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Reconciliation to the Statement of Net Position 

The following is a reconciliation of the unassigned fund balance on the governmental funds balance sheet with the 
unrestricted deficit in the statement of net position: 

Unassigned fund balance per the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 
Add 

Nonspendab le fund balance 
Assigned General Fund balances 
Deferred Maintenance Fund balance 
Adult Education Fund balance 

Deduct 

Compensated absences 
Emergency apportionment loan 
Negative self-insurance reserve 

Unrestricted Deficit per the Statement of Net Position 

NOTE 11 - LEASE REVENUES 

$ 19,256,873 

133,657 
7,389,840 
2,463,699 

519,929 

(7,754,008) 
(59,481 ,827) 
(26,942,6 19) 

$ (64,414,456) 

Lease agreements have been entered into with various lessees for terms that exceed one year. None of the 
agreements contain purchase options. All of the agreements contain a termination clause providing for 
cancellation after a specified number of days written notice to lessors , but is unlikely that the District will cancel 
any of the agreements prior to their expiration date . The future minimum lease payments expected to be received 
under these agreements are as follows 

Year Ending Lease 

June 30, Revenue 

2014 $ 670,234 

2015 665,612 

2016 415,430 

2017 140,237 

2018 110,000 

Thereafter 1,950,000 

Total $ 3,951 ,513 

Lease agreement between the District and Chabot Space & Science Center Joint Powers Authority 

The Chabot Space & Science Center Joint Powers Authority (Chabot JPA) is a joint powers authority, organized 
in 1989 pursuant to a Joint Powers Agreement between the City of Oakland, the Oakland Unified School District, 
and the East Bay Regional Park District The Chabot JPA was formed pursuant to the Government Code of the 
State of California, commencing with Section 6500. The 23 member Chabot JPA Board of Directors provides 
oversight to the general operations and governance of the Chabot Space & Science Center, giving its approval to 
all major expenditures, appointments , and strategic decisions 
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On July I, 1999, the District issued Certificates of Participation to provide a loan of$10,265 ,000 to Chabot, of 
which in the fall of 2010 $8 ,327,681 was still outstanding. The certificates have subsequently been paid off in 
full . To reduce the burden on the Chabot JPA, the District agreed to restructure the loan payment and on 
November 9, 2010, the District entered into a lease agreement with the Chabot JPA. The restructured loan 
agreement was a lease lease-back of the Chabot Space and Science Center Facility, under the following terms : 

• The District agreed to lease the Facility from Chabot for $1 and, the District leased it back to Chabot for 
$450,000 annually in quarterly payments of One Hundred Twelve Thousand, Five Hundred Dollars 
($1 12,500) . 

• The lease term is forty (40) years, commencing retroactively on October 1, 2009 (Commencement Date) 
and expiring on September 30, 2049. 

• The lease payments made by Chabot are used by the District to repay the remaining principal due on the 
original loan (plus an additional amount to cover up front costs); interest; and an admin istrative fee to the 
District. 

• The leased property is located at 10000 Skyline Blvd., Oakland, California 94610, and under this 
agreement, District students have priority use . 

Chabot entered into the above agreement in exchange for the cancellation of the original loan agreement. The 
District has no assets to report, either before or after the Lease Agreement. The District has the legal right to lease 
the property from Chabot and to lease it back to Chabot, but the assets remain on the books of Chabot. Because 
the District leases the facility from Chabot, it is not recorded as an asset on the District's balance sheet. To 
determine an appropriate annual lease amount, the District and Chabot acknowledged that the lease payments 
would be app li ed to(!) repayment of the outstanding balance of the original loan, (2) interest accrued on the 
unpaid principal during the term of the new lease, and (3) certain transaction costs . This arrangement was 
designed to ensure that the District would be fully repaid and would receive interest on the amount of the loan that 
had not yet been repaid. This calculation is what links the original loan and principal to the new lease. But the 
legal instrument is now a lease, with fixed quarterly lease payments due from Chabot. To encourage the use of the 
facility for educational purposes, the agreement also allows for the District to receive certain discounts for the use 
of the facility. These discounts and other " in kind" contributions are valued, per the lease agreement, and can be 
used to reduce the total amount due on the lease. If the original "Principal" is fully repaid, along with current 
interest and administrative fees , the lease will terminate. 

In November 2013 , the Chabot JPA advised the District it was unable to make its scheduled payments . As a 
result, the District entered into a two-year Forbearance Agreement. Under the terms of the Forbearance 
Agreement, OUSD will temporarily forbear from exercising its rights under the Lease-Leaseback Agreements and 
1) Chabot will make payments to the District as follows : during the 2014-15 fisca l year, a payment of $150,000 
toward the 2013-14 indebtedness; and a payment of $200,000 during the 2015-16 fiscal year toward the 2013-14 
indebtedness; 2) subject to approval by the Oakland City Council , the 2013 - 14 partial payment, payable in the 
2014-15 and 2015 -1 6 fiscal years will be made by the City of Oakland, for the benefit of Chabot. As of July 2015 , 
no payments have been received . 
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NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

Property and Liability 

The District is exposed to va rious risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to , and destruction of assets; errors 
and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters. During the year, the District contracted with Northern 
California ReLiEF for property and liabili ty insurance coverage . Northern California ReLiEF property insurance 
coverage maintains a self-insurance retention of $250,000 per occurrence and $250,000,000 limits of coverage. 
The District pays an annual contribution of $1 ,406,416 to Northern California ReLiEF for its excess property and 
liability coverage. Settled cl aims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three years. 
There has not been a significant reduction in coverage from the prior year. 

Workers' Compensation 

The District is permissibly se lf-insured for workers' compensation, and maintains a $250,000 per occurrence self­
insurance retention. Above that level , the District purchases excess insurance to the statutory maximums for an 
annual combined premium of $667,230. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the 
past three years. There has not been a significant reduction in coverage from the prior year. 

Claims Liabilities 

The District records an estimated liability for indemnity torts and other claims against the District. Claims 
li ab ilities are based on est imates of the ultimate cost of reported claims (including future claim adjustment 
expenses) and an estimate for claims incurred, but not reported based on historical experience . 

Unpaid Claims Liabilities 

The fund establishes a liability for both reported and unreported events, which includes estimates of both future 
payments of losses and related claim adjustment expenses . The following represent the changes in approximate 
aggregate liabilities for the District from July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2013 (in thousands) : 

Liabi li ty Balance, July 1, 2011 

Claims and changes in est imates 
Claims payments 

Liability Balance, June 30, 2012 
Claims and changes in estimates 
Claims payments 

Liability Balance, June 30, 2013 

Assets avai lable to pay claims at June 30, 2013 

46 

Self-Insurance 
$ 29,765 

8, 128 
( 15,247) 
36,885 
17,829 

(17,358) 
$ 37,356 

$ 10,434 
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NOTE 13 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer retirement plans maintained by agencies of the State of 
California. Certificated employees are members of the California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS) 
and classified employees are members of the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS). 

CalSTRS 

Plan Description 

The District contributes to the CalSTRS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system 
defined benefit pension plan administered by CalSTRS . The plan provides retirement and disability benefits, 
annual cost-of-living adjustments, and survivor benefits to beneficiaries Benefit provisions are established by 
State statutes, as legislatively amended, within the State Teachers' Retirement Law. CalSTRS issues a separate 
comprehensive annual financia l report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. 
Copies of the CalSTRS annual financial report may be obtained from CalSTRS, I 00 Waterfront Place, West 
Sacramento, CA 95605 . 

Funding Policy 

Active plan members are required to contribute 8 0 percent of their salary and the District is required to contribute 
an actuarial ly determined rate . The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those 
adopted by CalSTRS Teachers' Retirement Board. The required employer contribution rate for fiscal year 
2012-13 was 8.25 percent of annual payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan members are established 
by State statute . The District's contributions to CalSTRS for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2013 , 2012, and 
2011 , were $12,402,057, $12,444,347, and $12 ,775 ,520 respectively, and equal 100 percent of the required 
contributions for each year. 

CalPERS 

Plan Description 

The District contributes to the School Employer Pool under the CalPERS , a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalPERS. The plan provides 
retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments , and survivor benefits to plan members and 
beneficianes . Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the Public 
Employees' Retirement Laws. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report that includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of the CalPERS' annual financial report may 
be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, California 95811 . 
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Funding Policy 

Active plan members are required to contribute 7.0 percent of their salary and the District is required to contribute 
an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those 
adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The required employer contribution rate for fiscal year 
2012-1 3 was 11.417 percent of covered payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan members are 
established by state statute. The District's contributions to Cal PERS for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2013 , 
2012, and 2011 were $7,412,661 , $6,826,845 and $6 ,458,943 , respectively, and equal 100 percent of the required 
contributions for each year. 

On Behalf Payments 

The State of California makes contributions to CalSTRS on behalf of the District These payments consist of state 
General Fund contributions to CalSTRS in the amount of $8 ,227,929 (5 .176 percent of annual payroll) . Under 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these amounts are to be reported as 
revenues and expenditures . Accordingly, these amounts have been recorded in these financial statements. On 
behalf payments have been excluded from the calculation of available reserves , and have not been included in the 
budgeted amounts reported in the General Fund - Budgetary Comparison Schedule . 

NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Grants 

The District received financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of grants . The disbursement 
of fund s received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in the 
grant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies . Any disallowed claims resulting from such 
audits could become a liability of the General Fund or other applicable funds . However, in the opinion of 
management, any such disallowed claims wi ll not have a material adverse effect on the overall financial position 
of the District at June 30, 2013. 

Litigation 

The District is involved in various litigation arising from the normal course of business. In the opinion of 
management and legal counsel , the disposition of all litigation pending is not expected to have a material adverse 
effect on the overall financial position of the District at June 30, 2013 . 
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NOTE 15 - PARTICIPATION IN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITIES AND OTHER RELATED PARTY 
TRANSACTIONS 

East Bay Regional Occupation Agency 

The District is a member of the East Bay Regional Occupation Agency which was formed to operate the Regional 
Occupational Program (ROP) The ROP is governed by an appoi nted board of directors and is an entity separate 
and distinct from each of the participant Districts. The purpose of the ROP is to provide entry-level occupational 
training to youths and adults res iding in the participant Districts. 

The ROP is funded by state apportionment moneys based on average da ily attendance reported to the state by 
each participant District Apportionment moneys are received from the state by the participant districts and 
transferred to the ROP ROP classes are held at sites owned by the partic ipant districts and are instructed by 
personnel who are employees of the participant di stricts. Accordingly, the ROP itself has no capital assets and no 
employees. The participant districts allocate certificated and classified salaries, employee benefits, and indirect 
costs to the ROP. 

The District has appoi nted board members to the govern ing board of East Bay Regional Occupation Agency. 
During the year ended June 30, 2013 , the District made no payments to the East Bay Regional Occupation 
Agency because it is inactive. 

East Bay Asian Youth Center 

The East Bay As ian Youth Center (EBA YC) is an Oakland nonprofit working in neighborhood communities to 
inspire young people One member of the Oakland Unified School District Board of Education also serves as an 
Executive Director of the EBA YC. The board member does not participate in financial decisions regarding 
approval of contracts between the District and the EBAYC. During the year ended June 30, 2013 , the District 
made payments of $ 1,945 ,4 74 to the EBA YC for student related services at various schools . 

Chabot Space & Science Center Joint Powers Authority 

The District participates in the Chabot Space & Science Center Joint Powers Authonty (Chabot JPA) , a Joint 
powers authority established to provide quality sc ience education to members of the Oakland community . The 
Chabot JPA board consists of representatives of the City of Oakland, the Oakland Unified School District, and the 
East Bay Regional Park District. The District appoints 3 members to the 23 member governing board. During the 
year ended June 30, 20 13, the District made payments of $650 to the Chabot JPA 

Youth Ventures Joint Powers Authority 

The District participates in the Youth Ventures Joint Powers Authority (Youth Ventures), a joint powers authonty 
established to promote the education, health, well-bring, and economic viab ility of children, youth, and families 
wi thin the County of Alameda. 

The Youth Ventures board consists of representatives of the City of Oakland, the Oakland Unified School 
District, and the County of Alameda. The Distr ict appoints 5 members to the 15 member governing board . During 
the year ended June 30, 2013 , the District allowed Youth Ventures to use buildings and classroom space for 
operation of after school programs in lieu of cash payments. 
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Northern California Regional Liability Excess Fund 

The District is a member of the Northern Cali fo rnia Regional Liab il ity Excess Fund (NCR) . NCR is a non-profit 
member-owned and operated Joint Powers Authority (JPA) providing risk management serv ices to California 
public schools. The District appointed one member to the 42 member governing board . During the year ended 
June 30, 20 13, the District made payments of $ 1,52 1,657 to the NCR fo r insurance premiums. 

These ent ities have budgeting and financ ial reporting requi rements independent of member units and their 
fi nancial statements are not presented in these financial statements . Financial statements are availabl e from the 
Oakland Unified School District at 1000 Broadway, Oakland Califo rnia 

NOTE 16 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

The July 1, 20 12, beginning fu nd balance of the General Fund and the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund are 
restated to refl ect the fo ll owing correcti ons noted in the current year audit that relate to prior years : 

General Fund 
Fund Balance - Beginning 

Correction of prev ious year revenue 
Correction of prev ious year expense 
Miscell aneous 

Fund Balance - Beginning as Restated 

Bond Interest and Redemption Fund 
Fund Balance - Beginning 

Correction of previous year cash reconc il iation error 
Fund Balance - Beginning as Restated 

NOTE17-SUBSEQUENTEVENTS 

Local Control Funding Formula 

$ 45,2 19,763 

408 ,065 
(808, 192) 

( 159,568) 
$ 44,660,068 

$ 45,710,680 
(772,527) 

$ 44,938,153 

The Local Control Funding Formula ("LCFF") replaces the existing revenue limit funding system and most 
categorical funding and distributes resources to school Districts through a base fu nding grant per unit of daily 
attendance ("ADA"), w ith additional supplemental fund ing to Districts, such as Oakland, w ith large populations 
of English language learners, students fro m low-income families and foster youth beginning in fiscal year 20 I 3-
14. LCFF wi ll be implemented over eight years. Because of the District ' s high concentration of English language 
learners, students from low-income families and foster youth, the Distri ct anticipates an increase of approx imately 
$8 .2 million in State funding in 20 13-1 4, $30.6 million in 20 14-1 5, and $38 .2 million in 201 5-1 6. 
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1025 Damage 

On January 7, 2013 , a substantial water leak occurred on the top floor of the District's Paul Robeson 
Administration Building, located at I 025 2nd Avenue, causing excessive flooding on all four floors and 
significant damage to the entire structure . As a result of this water damage, the Paul Robeson Administration 
Building was vacated and staff relocated to leased space at the Trans Pacific Center, 1000 Broadway. The 
lease payments for 1000 Broadway are covered by the insurance settlement through December 2015 . 

General Obligation Bonds 

In August 2013 , the District issued $ 120 million in general obligation bonds at interest rates ranging from 4.000% 
to 6.300%. The bonds have maturity dates through August I , 2038 . 

Chabot JPA 

As described in Note 11 , Lease Revenues, the District and Chabot Space and Science Center Joint Powers 
Authority entered into a lease agreement in November 20 IO In November 20 13, Chabot advised the District it 
was unable to make the scheduled payment. As of June 30, 2014, Chabot is behind four quarters and owes the 
District $450,000. The outstanding loan principal owed by Chabot to the District is $6 .8 million dollars . Chabot 
requested another loan modification pending the completion of a current capital campaign and realignment of its 
business model. As a result, the District entered into a two year Forbearance Agreement. Details of the 
Forbearance Agreement are described in Note 11 , Lease Revenues . 

New Parcel Tax - November 2014 Measure N 

On November 4, 2014, Measure N, a $120 parcel tax known as "Oakland Unified School District College and 
Career Readiness for All Fund" was approved by voters . The proceeds from the parcel tax w ill be used to provide 
Oakland high school students with real-world work and learning opportunities; prepare students for admission to 
the University of California and other four -year colleges; expand mentoring, tutoring, counseling, support 
services, and transition to job training programs. 

The parcel tax will also pay for the implementation of a comprehensive approach to high school education in 
Oakland that integrates challenging academics with career-based learning and real-world work experiences, 
including, small learning communities of career-oriented pathways, and, individualized support to create the 
conditions for all students to graduate high school prepared to succeed in col lege and career. Measure N is 
anticipated to generate approximately $12 million of additional funding for the District. 
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GENERAL FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Budgeted Amounts Variances -
Actual Final 

Original Final (GAAP Basis) to Actual 
REVENUES 

Revenue limit sources $ 190,608,165 $ 186,907,019 $ 194,494,027 $ 7,587,008 
Federal sources 55,184,749 61 ,473 ,567 52,471,720 (9,001 ,847) 
Other state sources 114,769,314 11 6,812,787 116,094,633 (718,154) 
Other local sources 37,641,103 40,643,835 37,344,909 (3 ,298,926) 

Total Revenues I 
398,203,331 405,837,208 400,405,289 (5 ,431,919) 

EXPENDITURES 

Current 

Certificated salaries 150,593,920 152,464,076 155,185,719 2,721 ,643 
Classified salaries 55,904,603 55,889,458 59,760,371 3,870,913 
Employee benefits 90,282,999 89,241 ,681 88,248,420 (993 ,261) 
Books and supplies 27,986,923 27,901 ,078 17,978,066 (9,923,012) 
Services and operating expenditures 60,772,342 82,580,094 77,383 ,970 (5 ,196,124) 
Other outgo 9,294,293 7,794,630 2,6 19,529 (5,175,101) 

Capita l outlay 149,050 530,603 347, 180 (183 ,423) 
Debt service - principal 4,84 1,764 4,841 ,764 
Debt service - interest 1, 135 ,239 1,135,239 

Total Expenditures I 
394,984, 130 416,401 ,620 407,500,258 (8,901,362) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 3,219,201 (I 0,564,412) (7,094,969) 3,469,443 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Transfers in 3,417,042 3,417,042 537,196 (2,879,846) 
Transfers out (3 ,093 ,782) (3,093 ,782) ( 1,000,000) 2,093,782 

Net Financing Sources (Uses) 323 ,260 323,260 (462,804) (786,064) 
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 3,542,461 (10,241 ,152) (7,557,773) 2,683,379 
Fund Balance - Beginning - Restated 44,660,068 44,660,068 44,660,068 
Fu nd Ba lance - Ending $ 48,202,529 $ 34,418 ,916 $ 37,102,295 $ 2,683,379 

I 
On behalf payments of $8 ,227 ,929 are not included in the actual revenues and expenditures. 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

LOCAL EDUCATIONAL AGENCY ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE 
JUNE 30, 2013 

The Oakland Unified School Distr ict was established in 1855 and consists of an area comprising approximately 
55 square miles. During the 2013-13 school year, the Distr ict operated 54 elementary schools, 17 middle schools, 
12 high schools, 10 alternative school s, 5 Program for Exceptional Children centers, and 3 Continuation schools. 

GOVERNING BOARD 

MEMBER 

David Kakishiba 
Jumoke Hinton Hodge 
Jody London 
Gary Yee 
Roseann Torres 
Christopher Dobbins 
James Harris 

ST A TE TRUSTEE 

Carlene Naylor 

ADMINISTRATION 

NAME 

Tony Smith 

Jacqueline Minor 

Vernon Hal 

Maria Santos 

OFFICE 

President 
Vice President 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 

See accompanying note to supplementary information 

TITLE 

Superintendent 

General Counsel 

TERM EXPIRES 

January 2015 
January 2013 
January 2013 
January 2015 
January 2013 
January 2015 
January 2013 

Deputy Superintendent Business & Operations 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF A VERA GE DAILY ATTENDANCE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Final Report 
Second Period Annual 

Report Report 
ELEMENTARY 

Kindergarten 3,376 3,381 
First through third 9,449 9,442 
Fourth through sixth 7,909 7,907 
Seventh and e ighth 4,294 4,297 
Horne and hospital 26 27 
Special education l ,097 1, 103 

Total Elementary 26, 151 26, 157 
SECONDARY 

Regular classes 7,413 7,336 
Continuat ion ed ucat ion 386 353 
Home and hospital 17 17 
Spec ial education 656 650 

Total Secondary 8,472 8,356 
Total K-12 34,623 34,5 13 

See accompanying note to supplementary information 
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As Adj usted per Audit 

Second Period Annual 
Report Report 

3,376 3,381 
9,446 9,439 

7,909 7,907 
4,292 4,295 

26 27 
l ,097 l ,103 

26, 146 26,152 

7,400 7,323 

386 353 

17 17 

656 650 
8,459 8,343 

34,605 34,495 



OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Reduced Reduced Number 
1982-83 1982-83 1986-87 1986-87 20 12-13 of Days 
Actual Actual Minutes Minutes Actual Traditional 

Grade Level Minutes M inutes Requirement Requ irement Minutes Calendar Status 
Kindergarten 31,800 30,9 17 36,000 35 ,000 45,420 180 In Compliance 
Grades 1 - 3 

Grade l 40 ,610 39,482 50,400 49,000 50,880 180 ln Compl iance 
Grade 2 40,6 10 39,482 50,400 49,000 50,980 180 In Compl iance 
Grade 3 40,6 10 39,482 50,400 49,000 50,920 180 In Compliance 

Grades 4 - 6 
Grade 4 42,360 4 1,183 54,000 52,500 54,000 180 In Compliance 
Grade 5 42 ,360 41 , 183 54,000 52,500 54,000 180 In Compliance 
Grade 6 42,360 41 , 183 54,000 52,500 54,090 180 In Compliance 

Grades 7 - 8 
Grade 7 42,360 4 1, 183 54,000 52,500 54,090 180 In Compliance 
Grade 8 42,360 4 1,183 54,000 52,500 54,090 180 In Compliance 

Grades 9 - 12 
Grade 9 42,000 40,833 64,800 63 ,000 64,815 180 In Compliance 
Grade 10 42,000 40,833 64,800 63,000 64,815 180 In Compliance 
Grade 11 42 ,000 40 ,833 64,800 63 ,000 64,815 180 In Compliance 
Grade 12 42 ,000 40 ,833 64,800 63 ,000 64,8 15 180 In Compli ance 

See accompanying note to supplementary info rmation. 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Name of Charter School 
100 Black Men of the Bay Area 
Achieve Academy 

American Indian Public Charter Hi gh 

American Indian Public Charter Schoo l 
American Indian Public Charter Schoo l II 
ARISE High School 
ASCEND 

Aspire Berkley Maynard Academy 
Aspire ERES Academy 

Aspire Golden State Coll ege Preparatory Academy 
Aspire Lionel Wilson Coll ege Preparatory 
Aspire Millsmont Academy 

Asp ire Monarch Academy 
Bay Area Technology School 
Civicorps Corpsmember Academy 

Conservatory of Vocal & Instrumental Arts 
East Oakland Leadership Academy 

East Oakland Leadership High School 
KIPP Bridge Charter School 
Learning Without Limits 
L ighthouse Communi ty Charter High School 
Lighthouse Communi ty Charter School 
LPS Oakland R&D 
LPS-Co ll ege Park 

North Oakland Community Charte r 
Oakland Charter Academy 
Oakland Charter Hi gh School 
Oakland Military Institute 
Oakland School fo r the Arts 
Oakland Unity High Schoo l 

Reems (Ernestine) Academy of Technology & Arts 
V incent Academy 

World Academy 

See accompany ing note to supplementary information . 
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Separate Report 

Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 

Separate Report 

Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 

Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 

Separate Report 
Separate Report 



OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET REPORT WITH 
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

County School A dult Child 
General Building Facilities Education Development Cafeteria 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 
Unaudited actuals $ 30, 138,704 $ 31,969,257 $ 47,930,252 $ 497,294 $ 314,930 $ 1,502,866 
Changes from 

Depos its and 
investments 654,798 17 1, 106 18,84 1 287 1,759 90 1 

Accounts receivable 6,768 ,070 (32,667) (19,323) 
Accounts payable 40,723 5,834,724 1,062,267 22,348 351 (11 ,453) 
Deferred revenue (500 ,000) 

Fund balance per 
audited financial 
statements $ 37,102,295 $ 37,942,420 $ 48,992,037 $ 5 19,929 $ 317,040 $ 1,492,314 

Deferred Capital State School Special Reserve Self 

Maintenance Facilities Building Capital Outlay Debt Service Insurance 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 

Unaudited actuals $ 2,462 ,047 $ 3,880,092 $ 482 $ 963 ,544 $ $ 10,646,654 
Changes from: 

Deposi ts and 
investments 1,652 (l ,943) (337) (5 ,272) (6,459) (322,794) 

Accounts receivable (6,982) 
Accounts payable 112,412 96,3 13 
Claims liability (36,884,890) 
Changes in claims 
liab ility ( 4 70,920) 

Fund balance per 
audited financial 
statements $ 2,463 ,699 $ 3,990,56 1 $ 145 $ 958 ,272 $ (6,459) $(26,942,619) 

See accompanying note to supplementary information. 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Pass-through 

CFDA Identifying Federal 

Program T itle Number Number Expenditures 
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

Passed through California Department of Educat ion 
School Improvement Grants 84 .377 15127 $ 3,218,594 
ARRA - School Improvement Grants 84 .388 15004 2,849,6 19 
Title I, Part A of the ESEA -

Grants to Local Educational Agenc ies 84.0 10 14329 20,5 12,794 
Tit le I, Part C of the ESEA 84.011 14326 76,794 
Title II, Part A of the ESEA -

Improving Teacher Quality State Grants program 84367 14341 3,097,979 
Title III of the ESEA - Limited English 

Proficient Student Program 84.365 15 146 2,396,979 
Title IV, Part B of the ESEA, 2 1st Century 

Community Learning Centers 84.287 14349 3,519,996 
Education for Homeless Children and Youth 84.196 14332 12,575 
Career and Technical Education 84.048 14894 489,253 
Rehab ii itation Services, Vocational Rehab ii itation 84.126 10006 374,525 
Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities 84. 184 151 64 322,766 
Indian Education 84.06 100 11 79, 151 
Innovative Educat ion Strategies 84.298A 14354 1,343 
Enhancing Educat ion through Technology 84.318 14334 9,780 
Enhanc ing Education through Technology 84.318 14368 27,939 
Adult Education 84.002 13 978 368,724 
IDEA Early Intervent ion Programs, Part C 84. 181 23761 205 ,411 
Special Education - Individuals with Disabi liti es Education Act 

Part B, Sec 611 , Basic Local Assistance Ent itlement 84 .027 13379 8,587, 168 
Part B, Sec 611 , Mental Health All ocation Pl an 84.027A 14468 1,675 ,442 
Part B, Sec 611 , Preschool Local Entitlement 84 .027A 13682 458 ,172 
Part B, Sec 619, Preschool Grants 84 .173 13430 211 ,340 
Pa1i B, Sec 6 19, Preschool Staff Development 84 . l 73A 13431 3,238 

Total passed through Cali fornia Depaiiment of Education 48 ,499,582 
Direct grants 

A11s Development & Dissemination 8435 10 NIA 242, 135 
TTO Project Stem 84.350A NIA 352,728 
Small Learning Comm unities 84 .215L NIA 886,395 
Teaching American History 84.215X N/A 1,215 
1-3 Grant 84.41 IC N/A 923 ,878 
Transition to teaching 84.350A NIA 456,073 
Early Reading First 84.3598 NIA 153,636 

Total U .S Department of Education 51 ,515 ,642 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Program T itle 
U.S DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 

Passed through Cali fo rni a Department of Educat ion 
Summer Food Service Program fo r Children 
Fresh Fru it and Vegetable Program 
National School Lunch Program 

Chi ld Care Food Program - Centers and Family Day Homes 
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
Direct Grant 

Refugee and Entrant Ass istance 

Federal Child Care, Center-based 

Passed through Cal ifornia Department of Health Care Services 
Medical Ass istance Program 

Total U.S Department of Health and Human Services 

CORPORTA TION FOR NATIONAL & COMMUNITY SCIENCE 
Direct Grant 

AmeriCorps Vista 
Health Resources and Administration 

Total Corporation for National & Communi ty Science 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 

See accompanying note to supplementary informat ion. 

61 

CFDA 
Number 

10.559 
10 .582 
10.555 

10.558 

93 .576 
93 .596, 
93 .575 

93 .778 

94 .0 13 
93 .50 1 

Pass-through 
Identi fy ing 

Number 

13005 
14968 

13391 / 13396 

13393 

24791 

13609 

1001 3 

NIA 
NIA 

Federal 
Expenditures 

396,355 
492,893 

13 ,347,642 

1, 190,002 
15,426,892 

117,007 

2,8 17,292 

1,262,982 

4, 197,28 1 

8,000 
106,071 
11 4,071 

$ 71 ,253 ,886 



OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

(Budget) 

2014 I 2013 
GENERAL FUND 

Revenues 3 
$ 403 ,968,461 $ 400,405 ,289 

Other sources 537,196 
Total Revenues and Other Sources 403 ,968,461 400,942,485 

Expenditures 3 
393,767, 186 407,500,258 

Other uses and transfers out 3,093 ,782 1,000,000 
Total Expenditures and Other Uses 396,860,968 408,500,258 
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 7,107,493 $ (7,557,773) 

ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 44,209,788 $ 37, 102,295 

AVAILABLE RESERVES 2 
$ 13 , 143,714 $ 19,263,332 

AVAILABLE RESERVES AS A 
PERCENT AGE OF TOT AL OUTGO 3.31% 4.72% 

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS $ 944,142,078 $ 846,814,925 

K-12 AVERAGE DAILY 

ATTENDANCE AT P-2 4 
35,658 34,605 

20 12 2011 

$ 406,728,246 $ 414,571,841 
2,231 ,425 6,909,002 

408,959 ,671 421 ,480,843 

406,846,972 405 ,334,372 
4,836,025 

406,846,972 410,170,397 
$ 2, 112,699 $ 11 ,310,446 

$ 44,660,068 $ 42,547,369 

$ 12,758,527 $ 15,251 ,481 

3. 14% 3.72% 

$ 866,334,255 $ 828,337,572 

35,992 36,539 

The General Fund balance has decreased by $5,445 ,074 over the past two years . The fiscal year 2014 budget 
projects an increase of $7, 107,493 . For a district this size, the State recommends available reserves of at least 2 
percent of total General Fund expenditures, transfers out, and other uses (total outgo) 

Average daily attendance has decreased by 1,934 over the past two years. An increase of 1,053 ADA is 
anticipated during fiscal year 2013-14 . 

I 
Budget 20 14 is included for analytical purposes only and has not been subjected to audit. 

2 
Available reserves cons ist of all unass igned fund bal ances including all amounts reserved for economic uncertainties contained with the 

General Fund and the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects. 
3 

On behalf payments of$8,227,929 have been excluded from the revenues and expend itures fo r comparabi lity. 
4 

Exc ludes adult education and ROP ADA. 

See accompanying note to supplementary information 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Adult Child Deferred Capital 
Education Development Cafeteria Maintenance Facilities 

Fund F und Fund Fund Fund 
ASSETS 

Deposits and investments $ 497,87 1 $ 2,755,540 $ 1,525,022 $ 2,476,391 $ 2,567,869 
Receivables 98 ,594 1,006,565 4,395,752 1,651 462,027 
Due from other funds 1,219,042 

Total Asse ts $ 596,465 $ 3,762,105 $ 5,920,774 $ 2,478 ,042 $ 4,248,938 

LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities 
Payables $ 32,297 $ 398,89 1 $ I, 137,006 $ 14,343 $ 258,3 77 
Due to other fund s 44,239 3,025 ,833 3,291 ,454 
Deferred revenue 20,34 1 

Total Liabilities 76,536 3,445 ,065 4,428,460 14,343 258,377 
Fund Balances 

Restricted 317,040 1,492,314 3,990,56 1 
Committed 519,929 2,463 ,699 
Unass igned 

Tota l Fund Balances 519,929 317,040 1,492,314 2,463,699 3,990,561 
Tota l Liabilities and 
Fund Balances $ 596,465 $ 3,762, 105 $ 5,920,774 $ 2,478,042 $ 4,248,93 8 

See accompanying note to supplementary information 
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State School Special Reserve Nonmajor 

Building Capital Outlay Tax Override Debt Service Governmental 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds 

$ 145 $ 1,748,870 $ $ $ 11 ,571,708 

1,761 5,966,350 

1,2 19,042 

$ 145 $ 1,750,631 $ $ $ 18,757,100 

$ $ 142,724 $ $ - $ 1,983 ,638 

649,635 6 ,459 7,0 17,620 

20,34 1 

792,359 6,459 9,02 1,599 

145 958,272 6 ,758,332 

2,983 ,628 

(6,459) (6,459) 

145 958 ,272 (6,459) 9,735,501 

$ 145 $ 1,750 ,63 1 $ $ $ 18,757, 100 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Adult Child Deferred 

Education Development Cafeteria Mai ntenance 

Fund Fund Fund F u nd 

REVENUES 

Federal sources $ 384,347 $ 2,970,927 $ 15,426,892 $ 
Other state sources 71 ,417 8,887,629 1,025 ,726 

Other local sources 265,353 467,503 896,926 5,089 

Total Revenues 721 ,117 12,326,059 17,349,544 5,089 

EXPENDITURES 

Current 

Instruction 929,738 8,409,481 

Instruction-related activities 

Supervision of instruction 981 ,674 136,229 

School site administration 101 ,828 2,978,3 87 
Pupil services : 

Food services 17,322,491 

All other pupil services 32 13,684 

Administration 

All other administrat ion 60,6 10 502,099 756,303 
Plant services 288,430 

Facility acquisition and construction 626 ,242 

Total Expenditures 2 ,073 ,882 12,328,310 18,078 ,794 626,242 

Excess (Deficiency) of 

Revenues Over Expenditures (1 ,3 52,765) (2 ,251) (729,250) (621 ,153) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Transfers in 1,000 ,000 2,093 ,782 

Transfers out (57,224) (206,843) 

Net F inancing Sources (Uses) 1,000,000 (57,224) (206,843) 2,093 ,782 
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (352,765) (59,475) (936,093) 1,472,629 

Fu nd Balance - Beginning 872 ,694 376,515 2,428 ,407 991 ,070 
Fund Balance - E nding $ 519,929 $ 317,040 $ 1,492,314 $ 2,463 ,699 

See accompanying note to supplementary information 
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Capital State School Special Reserve Debt Nonmajor 
Facilities Building Capital Tax Override Service Governmental 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds 

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 18,782,166 

4,713,268 14,698,040 
4,892,320 145 232,580 ( 12,502) (6,460) 6,740,954 
4,892,320 145 4,945,848 ( 12,502) (6,460) 40,22 1, 160 

9,339,2 19 

1, 117,903 
3,080,2 15 

17,322,49 1 
13,7 16 

(964,798) 354,2 14 
7,818,880 228 3,985 ,95 1 12,093 ,489 
1,654,557 1,236,982 3,5 17,781 
8,508,639 228 5,222,933 46,839,028 

(3 ,616,3 19) (83) (277,085) (12,502) (6,460) (6,61 7,868) 

3,093 ,782 
(264,067) 

2,829,715 
(3,616,319) (83) (277,085) ( 12,502) (6,460) (3 ,788, 153) 
7,606,880 228 1,235,357 12,502 1 13,523,654 

$ 3,990,56 1 $ 145 $ 958,272 $ - $ (6,459) $ 9,735,50 1 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTE TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Local Educational Agency Organization Structure 

This schedule provides information about the District' s boundaries and schools operated, members of the 
governi ng board, and members of the ad ministration . 

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance (ADA) 

Average daily attendance (ADA) is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the District. The 
purpose of attendance accounting from a fisca l standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments of 
State fund s are made to school districts . This schedule provides information regarding the attendance of students 
at various grade levels and in different programs. 

Schedule of Instructional Time 

The District has received incentive fund ing for increasing instructional time as provided by the Incentives for 
Longer Instructional Day. This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by the 
District and whether the District comp I ied with the prov isions of Education Code Sections 46200 through 46206 . 

Districts must mainta in the ir instructional minutes at e ither the 1982-83 actual minutes or the 1986-87 
requirements, whichever is greater, as required by Education Code Section 4620 I. 

Schedule of Charter Schools 

This schedule lists all Charter Schools chartered by the District , and displays information for each Charte r School 
on whether or not the Charter School is included in the School District audit 

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report With A udited Financial Statements 

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconci le the fund balance of all fu nds reported on the 
Unaudited Actual Financial Report to the audited financi al statements. 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTE TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

The accompanying Schedule of Expend itures of Federal Awards includes the Federal grant activity of the District 
and is presented on the mod ified accrual bas is of accounting. The info rmation in this schedul e is presented in 
accordance with the req uirements of the United States Office of Management and Budget Circul ar A-1 33 , Audits 
of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organi::ations . Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedul e 
may diffe r from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the fi nanc ial statements . 

The fo ll owing schedul e provides reconciliation between revenues reported on the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances and the related expenditures reported on the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards. 

Total Federal Revenues From the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balances 

Federal interest subsidy on Qualified Construct ion Bonds and 
Build America Bonds 

Total Schedule of Expend itures of Federal Awards 

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis 

Amount 

$ 74,606,6 13 

(3,352,727) 
$ 71,253,886 

Thi s schedul e di scloses the Distr ict's financ ial trends by display ing past years' data along w ith current year budget 
info rmat ion. These fi nanc ial trend d isclosures are used to evaluate the District's ab ility to cont inue as a going 
concern for a reasonabl e period of t ime 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balances 

The Nonrnajor Governmental Funds Combining Balance Sheet and Combining Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances is included to prov ide information regarding the individual funds 
that have been included in the Nonrnajor Governmental Funds column on the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 
and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures , and Changes in Fund Balances. 
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Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP 
VALUE THE DIFFERENCE 

Certif ied Public Acco untants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Oakland Unified School District 
Oakland, California 

We have aud ited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major 
fund , and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Oakland Unified School District (the District) , as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2013 , and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the District ' s basic financia l statements and have issued our report thereon dated July 20, 2015. Our 
report on the financial statements includes a qualified opinion on the fiduciary fund because the District did not 
present the financial statements for the Assoc iated Student Body Funds . Accounting principles genera lly accepted 
in the United States of America require the presentation of these fiduciary fund financial statements as part of the 
financial statements. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we cons idered the District's internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropr iate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District's internal control 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity ' s financial statements 
wi ll not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis . A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify al l deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not 
identified We consider the deficiency 2013 -1 described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned 
costs to be a material weakness . 

Compliance and Other Ma tters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free from material 
mi sstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion . The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 
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The District's Response to Findings 
The District's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. The District's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the financial statements and , accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

Palo Alto, California 
July 20, 2015 
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Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP 
VALUE THE DIFFERENCE 

Certili e(I Public Acc ountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR 
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

To the Board of Education 
Oakland Unified School District 
Oakland , California 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the Oakland Unified School District's (the District) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have direct and material 
effect on each of the District ' s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013 . The District's major 
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor ' s results section of the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for comp I iance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District's major federal programs based 
on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States; and OMB Circular A-133 , Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those 
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred . An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about the District ' s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances . 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District's compliance. 
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Basis for Qualified Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

As described in findings 2013-02 through 2013-10, in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs, the District, did not comply with requirements regarding the following: 

Finding Program Name (CFDA Number) Compliance Requirement 
2013-2 Title I (84 .0 l 0), Title II (84.367), Title TII (84 .365), Equipment and Real Property 

21 Century (84.287), Special Education (84.027), Management 
Child Nutrition ( I 0 .553), Chi ld Care (93 .575), 
School Improvement Grant (84 .377, 84.388) 

2013-3 Title I (84 .010), Title TII (84.365), Procurement and Suspension and 
21 Century (84 .287), Special Education (84 .027), Debarment 
Child Nutrition ( I 0.553), Child Care (93 .575) , 
School Improvement Grant (84.377, 84.388) 

2013-4 National School Lunch Program (I 0 .555) Special Tests and Provisions 
2013-5 National School Lunch Program ( I 0 .555) Special Tests and Provisions 
2013-6 Special Educat ion (84 027) Reporting 
2013-7 School Improvement Grant and School Improvement Activities Allowed or Unallowed 

Grants, Recovery Act (84 .377, 84 388) 
2013-8 Title I (84 .010), Title 11 (84 .367), Title III (84 .365), Allowable Costs/Cost Principles 

21 Century (84 .287), Special Education (84 .027), 
Child Nutrition (10 .553), Chi ld Care (93 .575), 
Schoo l Improvement Grant (84 .377, 84.388) 

2013-9 Child Care and Development (93 .575) All owable Costs/Cost Principles 
2013-10 Chi ld Care and Development (93 .575) Eligibility 

Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the District, to comply with the requirements 
applicable to that program. 

Qualified Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the District 
complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a 
direct and material effect on each of the major federa l programs identified in the summary of auditor's results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, for the year ended June 30, 2013. 

Other Matters 

The District's response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The District's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of 
compliance, we considered the District's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-
133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District' s internal control over compliance . 
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Our consideration of internal control over comp I iance was for the I imited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that were not identified However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that we consider to be significant deficiencies . 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions , to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a 
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. 

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe 
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance. We consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2013-4 through 2013-10 to be significant 
deficiencies 

The District's response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The District's response was not subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133 . 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Palo Alto, California 
July 20, 2015 
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Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP 
Certif ied Public Acc ou ntant s 

Board of Education 
Oakland Unified School District 
Oakland , California 

Report on State Compliance 

REPORT ON STA TE COMPLIANCE 

VALUE THE DIFFERENCE 

We have audited Oakland Unified School District's (The District) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements as identified in the Standards and Procedures for Audit of California K- 12 Local Educational 
Agencies 20 I 2-20 I 3 that could have a direct and material effect on each of District's State government programs 
as noted below for the year ended June 30, 2013 . 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
app li cable to its State's programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance of each of the District's State programs based on our 
audit of the types of compl iance requirements referred to above . We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards , issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the 
Standards and Procedures for Audits of California K-12 Local Educational Agencies 2012-20 I 3. These standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a material effect on the applicable government 
programs noted below An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District's compliance with 
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances . We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal 
determination of the District's compliance with those requirements. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

As described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the District did not comply with 
requirements regarding After School Education and Safety (2013-11), Attendance Reporting (2013-12), and 
School Accountability Report Card (2013 -1 3) . Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, 
for the District to comply with the requirements applicable to those programs. 

Qualified Opinion 

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the District 
complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above for the year ended 
June 30, 2013 . 
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Unmodified Opinion on Each of the Other Programs 

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above 
that are applicable to the government programs noted below that were audited for the year ended June 30, 2013, 
except as described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph. 

Other Matters 

In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to determine the 
District's compliance with the State laws and regulations applicable to the following items: 

Attendance Accounting 
Attendance Reporting 
Teacher Certification and Misassignments 
Kindergarten Continuance 
Independent Study 
Continuation Education 

Instructional Time: 
School Districts 
County Offices of Education 

Instructional Materials 
General Requirements 

Ratios of Administrative Employees to Teachers 
Classroom Teacher Salaries 
Early Retirement Incentive 
Gann Limit Calculation 
School Accountability Report Card 
Juvenile Court Schools 
Class Size Reduction Program (including in cha1ier schools) 

General Requirements 
Option One Classes 
Option Two Classes 
Districts or Charter Schools With Only One School Serving K-3 

After School Education and Safety Program: 
General Requirements 
After School 
Before School 

Charter Schools: 
Contemporaneous Records of Attendance 
Mode of Instruction 
Non Classroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study 
Determination of Funding for Non Classroom-Based Instruction 
Annual Instruction Minutes Classroom-Based 

Procedures in Procedures 
Audit Guide Performed 

6 Yes 1 

3 Yes 
3 Yes 

23 Yes 
10 Yes 

6 Yes 
3 Not Applicable 

8 Yes 
1 Yes 
I Yes 
4 Not Applicable 
I Yes 
,., 

Yes 1 ., 
8 Not Applicable 

7 Yes 
,., 

Yes ., 
4 Not Applicable 
4 Not Applicable 

4 Yes 
5 Yes 1 

6 Not Applicable 

1 Not Applicable 
1 Not Applicable 

15 Not Applicable 
3 Not Applicable 
4 Not Applicable 

1Limitations regarding procedures performed are described in the Schedule of State Awards Findings and 
Questioned Costs section for items 2013-11 through 2013-13 . 

~ (lµ,u;.,,L / ,,;.,,.,._. J)i -I lo . uJJ 
Palo Alto, California 
July 20, 2015 
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Type of auditor's report issued 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness identified? 

Significant deficiency identified? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

FEDERAL A WARDS 
Internal control over major programs: 

Material weakness identified? 

Significant deficiency identified? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs : 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance 
with Section .510(a) ofOMB Circular A-133 ? 

Qualified 

Yes 

None reported 

No 

No 

Yes 

Qualified 

Yes 

Identification of major programs 

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
84 010 Title I, Part A of the ESEA - Grants to LEAs 
84367 Title II, Part A of the ESEA - Improving Teacher Quality 
84 .365 

84.287 
Title III of the ESEA - Limited English Proficient Student Program 

Title IV, Part B of the ESEA, 21 Century Community 

84.027, 84.027A, 84 .173, 84. l 73A Special Education - Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 
10.555 National School Lunch Program 
93.575 , 93 .596 Federal Child Care, Center-based 
84.377, 84.388 School Improvement Grants , ARRA - School Improvement Grants 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

STATE AWARDS 
Type of auditor' s report issued on comp! iance for state programs: 

Unmodified for all programs except for the following programs which 
are qualified 

Attendance Reporting 

After School Education and Safety Program 

School Accountability Report Card 

78 

$ 2,137,617 

No 



OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

The following findings represent instances of noncompliance related to the financial statements that are required 
to be reported in accordance w ith Government Auditing Standards . The findings are coded as follows : 

2013-1 

Five Digit Code 

30000 

60000 

AB 3627 F inding Type 

Internal Control 

Miscell aneous 

Financial Statement Presentation of Fiduciary Funds 
Code 30000, 60000 

Criteria or Specific Requirements 
GASB 34, paragraph 63 requires governments to report fiduciary funds to the extent that they have 
activities that meet the criteria for using the funds Furthermore, as a school district and custodian of 
associated student body funds , the District has a fiduciary responsibility to ensure appropriate 
safeguarding of student body funds . 

Condition 
The District has not prepared a summary of the Associated Student Body (ASB) funds in an auditable 
format. Therefore, the required schedule of these fiduciary funds is not presented in the financial 
statements . 

Questioned costs 
Not applicable . 

Context 
The amount of cash held on behalf of students varies depending on the size of the student body at 
each of the respective schools. The District operates approximately 6 1 elementary schools, 16 middle 
school s, and 12 high schools. This is a repeat finding from prior year. 

Effect 
The District is unable to present the fiduciary activ ity in the fi nancial statements. Furthermore, the 
District is unable to exercise its fiduciary responsibility over custody of these funds on behalf of the 
student body . 

Cause 
The District did not have procedures in place to accumulate the data necessary to present the 
associated student body fund financial info rmation 

Recommendation 
The Distr ict should develop procedures to identify the student body accounts at each of the school 
sites. Additionally, the District should ado pt the procedures conta ined in the FCMAT ASB manual 
regarding custody and oversight of the student body funds . 

Corrective Action Plan 
During 2014-15 , the District surveyed the school sites to determine which schools operated associated 
student body funds Future corrective action plans include training of staff and implementation of 
appropriate accounting procedures for the student body funds during 2015-16 with full 
implementation by the 2016-17 fiscal year. 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

FEDERAL A WARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

The following findings represent significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and/or material instances of 
noncompliance including questioned costs that are required to be reported by OMB Circular A-I 33. The findings 
have been coded as follows : 

2013-2 

Five Digit Code 

50000 

Equipment Records Management 
Code 
Federal Compl iance (50000) 

Federal Program Affected 

AB 3627 Finding Type 

Federal Compliance 

Title I (84 .010), Title II (84 .367), Title III (84.365), 2 I Century (84.287), Special Education (84.027, 
84.027A, 84.173, 84.173A), Child Nutrition (10 .553), Child Care (93 .575, 93 .596), School 
Improvement Grant (84 .377, 84.388) 

Criteria or Specific Requirements 
OMB A-133 , Subpart C, Section 300 requires the District to maintain internal control over Federal 
programs that provides reasonable assurance that the District is managing Federal awards in 
compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements that could 
have a material effect on each of its federal programs. 

The District is required to follow state laws and procedures for equipment acquired under a subgrant 
from the California Department of Education California Education Code §35168 requires the District 
to establish and maintain an inventory listing. The listing must contain identification information and 
original cost of all items of equipment whose current market value exceeds $500 per item, the date of 
acquisition, the location of use, and the time and mode of disposal. 

Condition 
Although the District maintains a record of all assets purchased with a cost of $5 ,000 or more, it does 
not full y comply with state laws and procedures for equipment management with respect to assets 
with a cost of at least $500 but less than $5 ,000 . The District completed an inventory of 
approximately 50% of such assets and posted the data to the asset-management software program. 

Questioned Costs 
The nature of this finding does not result in questioned costs. 

Context 
The District identified approximately 2,000 asset items purchased during 2012-13 , 2013-14, and 
2014-15 with a total cost of $2 7 million. The District has inventoried approximately 900 asset items 
with a total cost of $13 million as of June 30, 2013 . 

Effect 
While the District is implementing revised procedures as of the 2012-13 fiscal year, the District is 
unable to track inventory in the manner required by Education Code §35168 . 

Cause 
The District has a multi-year plan to implement the prior year equipment finding. Currently the 
District is mid-way through implementation of that plan. 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Recommendation 
The District should continue implementation of its equipment management system. 

Corrective Action Plan/District Response 
With respect to items of at least $500 but less than $5 ,000, the District plans, during 2015-16 fiscal 
year, to complete its inventory of the remaining 20 12-13, 20 13-1 4, and 2014-15 asset items and 
include those assets as well as the 2015 -1 6 purchases in the inventory modul e of its equipment 
management system. 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

FEDERAL A WARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

2013-3 Procurement and Suspension and Debarment 
Code 
Federal Compliance (50000) 

Federal Program Affected 
Title I (84.0 10), Ti tle II (84 .367), T itle III (84 .365), 2 1 Century (84 .287), Special Education (84 .027, 
84.027 A, 84. 173 , 84.173A), Chil d Nutri tion (10.553), Chil d Care (93.575, 93. 596), School 
Improve ment Grant (84 377, 84 388) 

Criteria or Specific Requirements 
OMB guidance in 2 CFR part 180, which impl ements Executive Orders 12549 and 12689 , debarment 
and suspension; Federal agency regul at ions in 2 CFR adopti ng the OMB guidance ; the A-1 02 
Common Rul e (§ _ _ .36); OMB Circular A-11 0 (2 CFR section 2 15.13). 

Condition 
Control and compliance - The District had not implemented effective internal contro ls over federa l 
compl iance because polic ies fo r federal procurements did not inc lude procedures to ensure vendors 
are not debarred or suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in federal 
grants . 

Questioned Costs 
We did not identify vendors that were debarred or suspended, or otherwise excluded fro m or 
ineligible fo r part icipation in federal grants and accord ingly there are no quest ioned costs. 

Context 
Thi s fi nd ing applies to all federal procurements of vendor related costs . 

Effect 
The District may employ the services of a vendor that is suspended, or otherw ise excluded from or 
ineligible for part icipat ion in federal grants. 

Cause 
Adequate procedures are not fully implemented. The D istrict began implementation of procedures to 
address this prior year finding during 20 12-1 3 w ith a goal of full implementation by June 20 15. 

Recommendation 
The District should ensure compliance by performing a verification check of vendors against the 
excluded parties listing system, collect ing a certification form from the vendor, or adding a clause 
or condition to the transaction within the vendor contract. 

Corrective Action Plan/District Response 
The District established procedures in January 20 12 to verify vendors against the EPLS . At contract 
initiation, new vendors are vetted against the EPLS . At the beginning of each fiscal year, existing 
vendors are checked aga inst the EPLS gov database. The District began implementation of the 
policies and procedures during 20 12-1 3 and continues that process w ith the goal of full 
implementat ion by June 20 15. 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

FEDERAL A WARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

2013-4 School Lunch Application Verification 
Code 
Federal Compliance (50000) 

Federal Program Affected 
National School Lunch Program ( 10 . 5 5 5) 

Criteria or Specific Requirements 
As described in 7 CFR section 245.6a, by November 15 of each school year, the local education 
agency (LEA) must verify the current free and reduced price eligibility of households selected from a 
sample of applications that it has approved for free and reduced price meals . 

Condition 
Control and comp! iance - The District is not adequately responding to the results of the verification 
of eligibility. 

Questioned Costs 
The results of our test work did not identify questioned costs associated with this instance of 
noncompliance . 

Context 
The District performed a verification of free and reduced price eligibility . Of the students selected by 
the District for verification, we selected a sample of 25 and noted that for one item in our sample, the 
District incorrectly updated the eligibility to "paid" instead of "reduced." 

Effect 
There may be additional students incorrectly classified as free , reduced, or paid . 

Cause 
Internal controls over federal comp! iance were not operating effectively. 

Recommendation 
Designate an individual with sufficient knowledge and experience to oversee the process of verifying 
the eligibility status of students. 

Corrective Action Plan/District Response 
The District implemented written policies and procedures during 2013-14 to ensure more accurate 
determination of applicants ' eligibility. The District ' s verification process includes confirming 
eligibility for a sample number of applications received/approved in the current school year for free 
and reduced price meal benefits under the NSLP and SBP, in accordance with USDA requirements. 
The District will continue to follow the guidelines and update classifications as needed when 
performing the verifications 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

FEDERAL AW ARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

2013-5 School Lunch Paid Price Equity 
Code 
Federal Compl iance (50000) 

Federal Program Affected 
National School Lunch Program (I 0.555) 

Criteria or Specific Requirements 
The District is required to ensure that sufficient funds are provided to its nonprofi t school food 
service accounts from lunches served to students not eligible for free or reduced price meal s. The 
District must calcul ate the weighted average price charged for its paid meals and compare this 
amount to the difference between the federal reimbursements for free and paid lunches. This 
difference is known as "equity ." There are two ways to meet this requirement: (a) by raising the 
prices charged for paid lunches; or (b) through contributions from other non-Federa l sources . School 
food authorities with an average we ighted price at or above equity ( currently $2 51) have already met 
therequirement (42 USC 1760(p); 7 CFRsections2 10 14(a)and 2 1014(e)). 

Condition 
Control and compliance - The District did not perform the calcul ations to assess compliance. 

Questioned Costs 
The nature of this control and compl iance finding does not result in questioned costs. 

Context 
We estimate that had the District calculated the weighted average meal price of paid lunches, they 
would have increased meal prices or General Fund contributions to the food services fund. The 
calculated weighted average meal price was $2.48, which is $.03 below the equity meal price. The 
District served 536,844 paid meals during the year. 

Effect 
This requirement is intended to ensure that school food authorities provide sufficient funds to their 
food service account for paid lunches. The District may not meet this requirement. 

Cause 
Department personnel were unaware that the requirement applied to the 2012-1 3 school year. 

Recommendation 
The California Department of Educat ion, as pass-through granting agency, provides literature to 
ensure new compliance requirements are communicated to school food authorities . Oakland Unified 
should utilize this information 

Corrective Action Plan/District Response 
The District is now aware of the requirement to perform a calculation of its weighted average meal 
price and adjust the price if less than the reimbursement rate for the free lunches. Starting with the 
2013-14 school year the District utilized the USDA provided Paid Lunch Equity tool to determine 
required paid meal price increases. The tool has been used in each subsequent school year. When 
completing the tool during the 2013 -1 4 school year an increase was required . This increase was 
approved by the Board in the spring of 20 14 and implemented on August 25 , 2014 for the 2014 -1 5 
school year. 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

FEDERAL A WARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

2013-6 Special Education Records Maintaining Eligibility 
Code 
Federal Compl iance (50000) 

Federal Program Affected 
Special Education (84 .027) 

Criteria or Specific Requirements 
34 CFR, Subtitle B, Chapter TIT, Part 300, Subpart D, Section 300.323 state that the beginning of each 
school year, each public agency must have in effect, for each child with a disability within its 
jurisdiction, an individual educational plan (IEP) , as defined in § 300.320. The TEP team must review 
the child's TEP at least once a year, as required by § 300.324. 

Condition 
Control and compliance - The District did not have documentation showing that for each child with a 
disability, an annually reviewed JEP is in effect. We noted an instance where documentation was not 
available, and we noted instances where documentation was not updated annually. 

Questioned Costs 
The nature of this finding does not result in questioned costs . 

Context 
The District has over five-thousand students designated as eligible for special education services . We 
selected a random sample of 60 IEPs and noted four exceptions One IEP was unable to be located 
and three IEPs were not revised annually . 

Effect 
The District was unable to support the assertion that all students designated as eligible for special 
education services in fact meet the eligibility criteria. 

Cause 
Policies and procedures over IEP maintenance are inadequate . 

Recommendation 
Designate an individual within the District to select audit samples throughout the year to ensure that 
all IEPs are complete, accurate, and maintained . 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Corrective Action Plan/District Response 
OUSD has taken the following corrective actions for completing IEPs on an annual basis and 
maintaining TEP records : 

• Case carriers are required to prepare a calendar ofIEPs at the beginning of the school year. 
• During 2013-14 and continuing in 2014-15, new teacher academies were created to 

specifically address issues identified in the findings. The trainings are conducted before the 
beginning of the year and at three evening institutes to support TEP development. 

• Beginning in 2014-15 , the Management Information Systems (MIS) clerks email IEP writing 
tips , to all service providers, on how to write more compliant and thorough TEPs. 

• Beginning in 2014-15 , the Compliance Coordinator writes quarterly articles on issues of 
systemic non-compliance and ways of avoiding these issues . These are published on the 
department ' s website . 

• During 2013-14 MTS clerks began running overdue TEP reports on a monthly basis 
• Program Specialists assist case carriers identified as overdue with TEP completion . 
• For case carriers unable or unwilling to correct overdue IEPs the Program Coordinator in 

conjunction with the site principal engages in progressive discipline, which includes the 
fo ll owing steps : verbal warning, letter of concern, letter of reprimand, notice of 
unprofessional conduct, and termination. 

• During 2013-14, and continuing in 2014-15 , the District changed from the WEB IEP system 
to the Special Education Information System (SETS) . The SETS program allows for the 
maintenance of vi1iual record and eliminates the need for paper documents, thus avoiding 
IEPs from being misplaced or mishandled. 

• Beginning in 2014-1 5, the Executive Officer for Legal and Comp I iance conducts twice 
weekly meetings with the MIS clerks and other involved in.dividuals to improve the 
collection of student data, the maintenance of compliant records and the reporting of accurate 
information to CDE 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

FEDERAL A WARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

2013-7 Transformation Model Implementation 
Code 
Federal Compliance (50000) 

Federal Program Affected 
School Improvement Grant and Schoo l Improvement Grants, Recovery Act (84 .377, 84.388) 

Criteria or Specific Requirements 
Sites implementing the transformation model are required to undergo a number of school wide 
reforms. Among all requirements, the fo llowing apply to this finding: 

I) Use rigorous , transparent, and equitable evaluat ion systems for teachers and principals that take 
into account data on student growth as a significant factor as well as other factors , such as multiple 
observation-based assessments of performance and ongoing collections of professional practice 
reflective of student achievement. 

2) Identify and reward school leaders, teachers, and other staff who, in implementing the 
transformation model , have increased student achievement. 

3) Implement such strategies as financial incentives, increased opportunities for promotion and career 
growth, and more flexible work conditions that are designed to recruit, place, and retain staff with the 
skil ls necessary to meet the needs of the students in a transformation model. 

The program is authorized by Section 1003(g) of the ESEA (20 USC 6303(g)) . It is governed by final 
requirements for School Improvement Grants authorized under Section 1003(g) of Title I of the 
ESEA, issued October 28, 2010 (75 FR 66363)(SIG final requirements) . 

Condition 
Compliance - The three compliance requirements of the transformation model noted in the criteria or 
specific requirements sect ion of this finding have not been implemented. 

Questioned Costs 
Questioned costs cannot be determined because the nature of this finding cannot be quantified. 

Context 
The District has four schools eligible to receive funds under the school improvement grant. All four 
schools implemented the transformation model. 

The three compliance requirements of the transformation model noted in the criteria or specific 
requirements section of this finding are not the only requirements of the transformation model. 
Accordingly, these three compliance requirements should not be the sole basis for assessing if the 
District is appropriately expending funds under the school improvement grant. 
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OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

FEDERAL A WARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Cause 
The District was unable to implement the reform strategies of the transformation model within the 
time period of receiving the grant through the 2012-13 fiscal year. 

Recommendation 
The school improvement grant does not continue in perpetuity. Due to the timing of this finding, the 
District may be unable to implement corrective action. If possible, we suggest the District contract 
the California Department of Education to request a waiver of the compliance requirements or seek 
guidance if compliance cannot be achieved . 

Corrective Action Plan/District Response 
The 2012-1 3 School Improvement Grant audit findings were resolved by the district based on the 
following programs that were initiated beginning in either the 2013-14 or 2014-15 school year as 
indicated . 

• Teacher Growth and Development System (TGDS) (2014-15) 
• Change Maker Awards (reward teachers) (2014-15) 
• Oakland Effective Teaching Taskforce (OETF) (2013 -1 4) 
• Certificated Employee Performance Appraisal System (CEPAS) (2013-14) 
• School Qua! ity Review (SQR) data for student and teacher appraisal (2013-14) 

These programs and tools are designed to identify, support, and reward teachers who are making a 
substantial impact on their students ' academic achievement In conjunction with the ability to 
provide training, coaching, and professional development for identified teachers in the SIG schools , 
the school leadership has been provided additional suppo1i through district-led professional 
development around the use of innovative technology and curriculum. 
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2013-8 Employee Time and Effort Documentation 
Code 
Federal Compl iance (50000) 

Federal Program Affected 
Title I (84 .010), Title TT (84.367), Title TTI (84.365), 21 Century (84 .287), Special Education (84.027, 
84.027 A, 84.173, 84.173A), Child Nutrition (10.553), Child Care (93.575 , 93.596), School 
Improvement Grant (84 .377, 84 388) 

Criteria or Specific Requirements 
Attachment B, Section 8(h) of OMB Circular A-87 specifies the standards for documenting salaries 
and wages charged to federal programs. 

Pursuant to Attachment B, § 8(h)(3), employees who work solely on a single federal award or cost 
objective need only complete a periodic cetiification meeting cetiain requirements, including that the 
certifications will be prepared at least semi annually. 

Pursuant to Attachment B, § 8[h][4] , [5], and [7], employees who work on multiple activities or cost 
objectives of which at least one is federal must complete a personnel activity report or equivalent 
documentation meeting certain requirements. Among others, the requirements include that activity 
reports must reflect an after the fact distribution of the actual activity of each employee. Activity 
reports must account for the total activity for which each employee is compensated Furthermore, 
activity reports must be prepared at least monthly and must coincide with one or more pay periods. 

Condition 
Control and compliance - During our examination of employee time and effort documentation, it was 
noted that not all employees submitted time and effort documentation meeting the aforementioned 
reg uirements. 

Questioned Costs 
We reviewed additional documentation that indicates services performed appear to support program 
objectives We did not find specific evidence that suggested inappropriate costs were charged to the 
program, only that specific required documentation in support of certain payroll charges, as required 
by OMB A-87, was lacking. Therefore, this finding does not result in any calculable questioned 
costs. 

Context 
This finding has repeated for multiple years . However, based on our observations, the District 
appears to have improved over the prior year as they located all of the required documentation. 

Total costs in support of employee salaries (not including benefits) across all eight major programs 
was $28.6M. Our sample consisted of 35 employees who charged time to the eight major programs. 
We noted the fo llowing: 

• Five time documents represent a control exception because they were not completed in a 
timely manner to enable reaction and adjustment of payrolls. 

• One time document represents a control and compliance exception because it was not 
prepared after-the-fact. 

• One time document represents a control and compliance exception because it was incorrect. 
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Effect 
Insufficient time and effort documentation could result in disallowance of expenditures allocated to 
Federal programs, because the District is unable to assert that an employee is engaged in an activity 
allowable for the program. 

Cause 
District office employees did not adequately monitor the timely collection of time and effort 
documentation. 

Recommendation 
The District has a system that faci litates preparation and coll ection of time and effort documentation. 
Human interaction is required to complement the system in ach ieving its purpose. Personnel should 
monitor and timely fo ll ow up with employees who are delinquent in the return of time and effort 
documentation. 

Corrective Action Plan/District Response 
During 2014-1 5, the District enhanced its time accounting monitoring procedures to ensure 
documentation is completed and submitted to the State and Federal Compliance Group. Monitoring 
Procedures for late documentation submission include: 

• Foll ow up email s with the employee and principal/supervisor 11 to 14 days after month end, 
• Communication submitted to network/deputy superintendent(s) if not received within 2 days 

of employee emai l, 
• Communication submitted to chief of schools if not received within 2 days of 

network/deputy superintendent(s) email , 
• 4) lf documentation remains outstanding by month end, communication submitted to 

superintendent. 
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2013-9 Expenditure Allocation 
Code 
Federal Compliance (50000) 

Federal Program Affected 
Child Care and Development (93 .575 , 93 .596) 

Criteria or Specific Requirements 
Attachment A, Section C (3) of OMB Circu lar A-87 specifies basic guidelines of costs charged to 
federal programs. In general , costs should be all ocated in accordance with the relative benefits 
received . 

Condition 
Control and compliance - Interfund transfers for custodial costs were not allocated to the federal ch ild 
care program based on the relative benefits received . Additionally the District has not implemented 
effective internal controls to ensure correct allocation of these costs . 

Questioned Costs 
Questioned costs were $307,437, which represents the excess of the allocated costs over the relative 
benefits received. 

Context 
This type of transaction occurs once per year. The Child Care Department incurred approximately 
$6 l 5K of custodial expense during the year 20 12- 13 fiscal year. Of this amount, $461 K was charged 
to the federal grant. 

Effect 
Charges for custodial services were over-allocated to the federal grant and result in identified 
noncompliance that is subject to repayment or internal correction within the District's books . 

Cause 
The District al located the $6 l 5K of custodial costs between the various funding sources that receive 
these services . The all ocation is incorrect because the Federal grant represents approximately 25% of 
the program, yet the District allocated 75% of the costs . 

Recommendation 
The District should appo int a responsible official to review and approve cost transfers going forward. 
Additionally, the District should remediate the identified noncompliance by returning the excess 
expense to the correct funding source . 

Corrective Action Plan/District Response 
Effective 2014-15, the District implemented a process of allocating custod ial charges on a prorated 
basis based on actual enrollment between federal and state programs within the District Chi ld Care 
and Development Fund . As part of the 20 14-1 5 year-end clos ing process, the District wi ll recalculate 
and post adjustments to prior year federa l program allocations as refunds fo r the excess costs. 
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2013-10 Child Care Eligibility 
Code 
Federal Compl iance (50000) 

Federal Program Affected 
Child Care and Development (93 .575, 93.596) 

Criteria or Specific Requirements 
The District must have in place procedures for documenting and verifying eligibility of children who 
participate in the child care program . 

Children must be under age 13 ( or up to age 19, if incapable of self care or under court supervision), 
who reside with a family whose income does not exceed 85 percent of State/territorial/tribal median 
income for a famil y of the same size, and reside with a parent (or parents) who is working or 
attending a job-training or education program; or are in need of, or are receiving, protective services. 

The District shall establish a sliding fee scale, based on family size, income, and other appropriate 
factors , that provides for cost sharing by families that receive CCDF child care services (45 CFR 
section 98.42) . 

Condition 
Control and compliance - The District has not implemented effective internal controls over 
eligibility . Additionally, we were unable to complete our audit procedures regarding compliance 
because the forms documenting compliance were unavailable . 

Questioned Costs 
We cannot determine questioned costs because we were unable to complete the audit procedures . 

Context 
This is a repeat finding from the prior year. We selected a sample of 20 students reported to the State 
as receiving child care services . The District was unable to locate documentation to support 9 of 
those samples, or 45% . Total federal expenditures for this program for the 2012-13 fiscal year was 
$2,817,292. 

Effect 
The District is unable to support the assertion that all pupils receiving child care services were 
eligible or that they were assessed the correct sliding scale fee . 

Cause 
Eligibility documents for some students were not accessible as they were located at school sites 
rather than at the Early Childhood Education (ECE) program offices. 
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Recommendation 
The District should perform internal audits of the child care program by randomly selecting students 
included in the attendance report and locating the eligibility documents to ensure they exist, are 
complete, and accurate . 

Corrective Action Plan/District Response 
The District implemented the fol lowing action plans during the 2014-1 5 fiscal year 

• Beginning during 2012-13 , ECE started filing eligibility documents at the ECE program 
offices 

• To insure that all families enrolled in the ECE program met the State eligibility requirements , 
staff received ongoing training to understand, update and implement Title 22 and Title V 
guidelines for program eligibility The ECE Director and the Enrollment Coordinator in 
conjunction with the CDE State Consultant, planned and conducted the training. 

• To insure that eligibi li ty requirements were met and family files were properly maintained 
throughout the year, the ECE Director and the Enrollment Coordinator coordinated the 
review of files twice yearly (fal l and spring). The focus of the review was to make sure a 
fami ly file was present for each family enrolled based on EESIS (student data system) and 
state data reports, and that the files contain up-to-date eligibility documentation and an 
accurate fee for service calculation. All staff responsible for enrollment was required to 
attend all trainings assigned to ful ly understand and implement the Fami ly Fi le Protocols. 
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The following findings represent instances of noncompliance and/or questioned costs relating to State program 
laws and regulations. The findings are coded as follows : 

Five Digit Code 
10000 
30000 
40000 
72000 

2013-11 After School Education and Safety 
Code 
State Compliance (40000) 

Criteria or Specific Requirements 

AB 3627 Finding Type 
Attendance 
Internal Control 
State Compliance 
School Accountability Report Card 

The purpose of the After School Education and Safety (ASES) program is to support student success 
in school by provid ing academic support and enrichment opportunities. An ASES after school 
program was never intended to be a drop-in or child care program . The legislature determined that 
regular attendance would serve as the measure for demonstrating comp liance with the legis lation 's 
purpose (EDC §8483 [a][ I]), intent (EDC §8483 [a][2]), and criteria for ongo ing program funding 
(EDC §8483 .7[a][l][A]) . 

Elementary school pupils must pa1iicipate in the ful l day of the after schoo l program on every day 
during which pupi ls participated (EDC §8483[a] [2]). Middle school pupils must attend the after 
school program a minimum of nine hours a week and three days a week, except as consistent with the 
established early release policy (EDC §8483[a][2]) . 

Every elementary and middle school operating an after school program must begin each day of the 
after school program immediately upon the conclusion of the regular school day . ASES programs 
must operate a minimum of 15 hours per week and remain open until 6 p.m. on every regular school 
day (EDC §8483[a][ l]) . 

Condition 
Written records documenting student's participation in the program do not support the reported 
number of students served . In some cases, attendance documents lacked sign in/out times and 
signatures . We noted instances where students leave the program early, but there was no connection 
to the established early release policy . In other instances, we were unable to complete the audit 
procedures because attendance documentation is not avai lable . 

Effect 
In some instances, the District was unable to support the ASES attendance reported to the State 
because documentation was either unava ilab le or incomplete Furthermore, the District was unable to 
assert that elementary school pupils participate in the full day of the after school program on every 
day during which pupils participated, or that middle school pupils attended the after school program a 
minimum of nine hours a week and three days a week. 
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Cause 
There was a lack of standardization and effective oversight in the ASES attendance gathering and 
reporting process. In addition, there appears to be a need for further education on the part of the site 
coordinators to understand the program compliance rules and regulations. 

Context 
The District operates an ASES after school program at 64 schools. Of the eight schools in our 
sample, three schools identified no exceptions (Greenleaf Elementary, La Escuelita Elementary, and 
Laurel Elementary). Our audit procedures noted the following items of noncompliance: 

• Allendale Elementary School - We examined ASES attendance for the month October 2012 
and March 2013. 

We noted a 53% error rate on October 31 , because 42 of the repo1ied 78 attendance records 
were not avai lable. We noted a 3% error rate overall for the month of October. The nature of 
these errors was that the sign in/out sheet counts did not reconcile with the reported number 
of students served. For the month of March, we noted no material exceptions. 

• Edna Brewer Middle School - We examined ASES attendance for the months of October, 
2012, and March, 2013 We were unable to complete the audit procedures because the 
attendance documentation was incomplete for a substantial portion of the items in our 
sample . 

• Fred Korematsu Discovery Academy Elementary School - We examined ASES attendance 
for the months of October, 2012 and March, 2013 . 

We noted the sign in/out sheets adequately support the reported number of students served. 
However, there was no documentation to link the established early release policy with 
instances where a student leaves early from the program. 

• Roosevelt Middle School - We examined ASES attendance for the months of October, 2012 
and March, 2013. 

We noted that for October 31 , 2012 the reported number of students served was overstated 
by 7%. For March 1, 2013, the reported number of students served was overstated by 8%. 
For March 6, 2013 , the reported number of students served was overstated by 17%. For 
March 15, 2013 , the reported number of students served was overstated by 18%. The nature 
of these errors was that the sign in/out sheet counts did not reconcile with the reported 
number of students served . We did not examine additional days of attendance Had we done 
so, we likely would have identified more instances of over/under stated attendance. 

• Urban Promise Academy Middle School - We examined ASES attendance for the months of 
October, 2012 and March, 2013 . The attendance documentation was not organized 111 

auditable form and accordingly we were unable to complete the audit procedures . 

This is a prior year finding and the District has a responsibility to ensure compliance with grant 
requirements . It is worth noting that due to the timing of the prior year findings , corrective action in 
the 2012-1 3 fisca l year was not possible . 
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Questioned Costs 
Funding for ASES is not reimbursed for attendance; instead, ASES is direct funded as three-year 
renewable grants by site. Grant awards for the fiscal year do not change once amounts are 
determined. Grant awards are based in part on the amount of students served (attendance reported to 
the state) . A discrepancy in the number of students served in the current year wi ll not affect current 
year funding , but it could influence funding for future periods . The funding amounts for future years 
are based on a number of factors of which number of students served is one. As such it is not possible 
to project what the fiscal impact of the errors noted above will have on future grant awards. 

Recommendation 
We recommend the District standardize the policies and procedures of ASES attendance reporting 
and enforce policies through frequent internal audits of the sites. All District sites need to be 
reminded to retain documented records of when a student signs out of the program, showing 
signature, time out and reconciliation to the estab lished early release policy, as applicable . It is also 
recommended that the District provide additional training to site coordinators as regards the rules and 
regulations regarding attendance gathering. Because of the inevitable turnover of personnel that 
occurs, this type of training should be given on an as needed basis, but at least annually and when 
there is turnover at the site coordinator position . 

After school staff should count the number of students daily . The daily attendance totals should be 
reconciled with the monthly attendance totals . Attendance records should be retained and stored 
securely 
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Corrective Action Plan/District Response 
The Audit Findings from the 2011-12 audit of OUSD ASES after school programs were not 
published until 2014. Consequently, the OUSD Afte r School Programs Office (ASPO) was not able 
to enact any corrective actions in response to these audit findings until the 2014-15 program year. 
The OUSD After School Programs Office implemented several new procedures beginning in the 
2014-15 school year to ensure that after school programs are comp I iant with attendance reporting 
requirements and earl y release policies . These new procedures include the following: 

• ASPO has established the following new after school attendance requirements for all ASES 
and 21st Century Community Learning Center program sites: By the 10th of every month, all 
OUSD ASES and 21st CCLC program sites are required to scan and send electronically to 
ASPO a copy of all their daily sign in/out sheets from the previous month. Programs are also 
required to conduct an internal audit of their attendance records to ensure that the number of 
attendances recorded in Cityspan for any given program date is properly supported by sign-in 
sheet documentation. Program sites are required to submit internal audit documentation to 
the ASPO by the 10th of each month, along with electronic copies of the previous month 's 
attendance records. ASPO staff will review submitted attendance data to monitor program 
sites for accurate completion of daily sign in/out fo rms and to cross-check that hard copy 
records match Cityspan data. 

• All program sites received documentation of these new attendance requirements during the 
2014 After School August Institute training, and electronically through email 
correspondence. After School site coordinators received training on these new requirements 
during three Cityspan trainings at the beginning of the 2014-15 school year, as well as during 
the New Site Coordinators orientation that took place in August, 2014. ASPO staff reviewed 
compliance requirements and provided examples of properly completed sign in/out sheets 
during these trainings. 

• ASPO changed its process for semi-annual attendance reporting to CDE beginning with the 
I st semi-annual attendance report for the 2014-15 school year. ASPO completed this first 
semi-annual attendance report using data on actual attendance signatures (pulled from the 
monthly internal audit logs submitted by all s ites), rather than using Cityspan data. This 
change provides assurance that OUSD would only report attendance numbers that could be 
verified by signatures at each program site . ASPO will continue to use this process of 
reporting on hand-counted signatures as opposed to Cityspan data until we are certain that 
the Cityspan data accurately matches the number of signatures for each day of program 
operation at all program sites. ASPO will continue to monitor monthly attendance records 
and internal audit logs from each site to determine whether Cityspan numbers and signatures 
are matching up, and wil l provide technical ass istance to sites that are having difficulty with 
accurate reporting using the Cityspan online database . 

• ASPO created a standard district form for programs to use to document daily early release of 
students leaving program earlier than 6pm. This daily early release form is distinct from the 
recurring daily early release form that is part of the standard after school enrollment packet 
ASPO trained all sites on the early release policy and proper documentation of early release 
occurrences during our 2014 August Institute training, and during the three Cityspan 
trainings we provided at the beginning of the 2014-15 school year. 
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• The OUSD After School Programs Office has created a new Compliance and Operations 
Program Manager position whose primary responsibility will be to monitor programs for 
compliance, and provide training and technical assistance to ensure that all program sites are 
operating full y in compliance and mainta ining accurate attendance records. This new 
position has been approved by the Board of Education and wi ll be posted on EdJoin in late 
June or early July. 

The above strategies were implemented beginn ing in the 20 14-1 5 school year. As a result, we expect 
a significant improvement in accuracy and completeness of after school attendance records beginning 
this 2014-15 school yea r. 
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2013-12 Attendance Records Maintenance 
Code 
Attendance (10000) 
State Compli ance (40000) 

Criteria or Specific Requirements 
EDC §4 160 l requi res the District to report average daily attendance of the district for all fu ll school 
months dur ing ( l) the period between July I and December 3 1, inclusive, and (2) the period between 
July l and Apr il 15, inclusive. Each attendance report shall be prepared in accordance with 
instructions on fo rms prescr ibed and furni shed by the Superintendent of Public Instruction. 

Condition 
The recording of attendance and document retent ion pract ices did not all ow the District to ensure 
state attendance reports were accurate or complete . 

Questioned Costs 
The results of our audit procedures observed quest ioned ADA of 18.26, result ing in questioned costs 
of $95 ,652. The base revenue limit used to calculate the questioned costs is $5 ,238 .35 . 

Questioned ADA of 18.26 resulted from the fo ll owing observati ons: 
• All endale Elementary School - Observed quest ioned ADA, 3.02 . 
• Castlemont High School - Observed questioned ADA, 45 . 
• Edna Brewer Middl e School - Observed questioned ADA, 0.27. 
• Montera Midd le School - Observed questioned ADA, 143 . 
• Oakland High School - Observed questioned ADA, 0 .07 . 
• Oakland Tech High School - Observed questioned ADA, 12.08 
• Skyline High School - Observed questioned ADA, 0.71. 
• Urban Promise Academy - Observed questioned ADA, 0.23 . 

The observed questioned ADA above is the result of taking the known exceptions as noted in the 
table below and dividing that number by the P-2 apportionment days factor of 129. 

Context 
A summary of our testing and the exceptions noted is as fo llows . 

Documentation not maintained, unable to complete audit proced ures : 
(Apport ionment) Total 

Audit Exceptions Reported ADA 

Site Sample Noted Erro r Rate at P-2 

All endale Elementary School 3104 390 13% 376 
Castlemont High Schoo l 840 58 7% 599 
Edna Brewer Middle School 258 35 14% 71 5 
Montera Midd le School 738 185 25% 868 
Oakland High School 1836 9 0 .5% 1434 
Oakland Tech High Schoo l 2806 1550 55% 1758 

Skyline High School 2665 92 3% 1498 
Urban Promi se Academy 840 30 4% 310 
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Overstated attendance per absence logs : 

Site 

Castlemont High School 
Oakland Tech Hi gh School 

Effect 

(Absense Log Entries) 

Audit 
Sample 

40 

50 

Exceptions 
Noted 

3 
9 

Error 
Rate 

8% 
18% 

Total 
Reported 
ADA at P- Absences 

2 Enrollment "Reported" 

599 641 42 

1758 1987 229 

Attendance reports may not be prepared in accordance with instructions prescribed and furnished by 
the Superintendent of Public Instruction. Furthermore, the District may not be able to defend itself 
against allegations of inappropriate attendance reporting because documentation is not always 
retained . Accordingly, an unknown amount of ADA could be questioned. 

Cause 
The District does not have adequate internal controls in place to ensure that all attendance 
documentat ion is retained . 

Recommendation 
We recommend the District standardize their methodology of attendance reporting and enforce this 
methodology through frequent internal audits of the sites. 

All District s ites should be reminded of the need to have documented records of student attendance . 
The District should provide additional training to site level staff regarding attendance taking policies 
and procedures, including document retention policies . Training should be held at least annually . Site 
level staff who disregard policies should be held accountable . 

As a long-term solution, the District should consider implementation of an attendance recording 
system that supports electronic signatures. Electronic documentation concentrates the retention 
responsibt!ities to a central location more easily controlled by the District office. 

Corrective Action Plan/District Response 
The District will amend its second period and annual reports of attendance based on the audited 
results. Corrective actions taken in response to the attendance findings noted during the 2010-11 
fiscal year include: 

• Establishment of a Quality Attendance Team during 2013-14 . The team meets regularly to 
discuss and resolve site attendance issues that arise throughout the year. 

• Visited all school s during 2013-14 and 2014- 15 to determine the status of compliance. 

• If determined necessary, one-on-one training was and continues to be provided to school site 
staff 

• Reported results of the s ite visits to the audit committee members, various levels of 
management, and relevant individual school site staff ( e.g. attendance staff and principal). 

• Throughout the 2014-15 school , conducted mandatory attendance training for attendance 
clerks and pr incipals. 
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2013-13 School Accountability Report Card 
Code 
State Compliance (40000) 
School Accountability Report Card (72000) 

Criteria or Specific Requirements 
Schools are required to have annual facility inspections. Specifically, state law requires that the 
annual facility inspection be reflected on the School Accountability Report Card (SARC) in 
accordance with EDC §33126 and EDC §33126. l . The Office of Public School Construction (OPSC) 
Facility Inspection Tool (FIT), or a locally developed instrument that meets the same legal 
requirements, must be utilized during these inspections to determine if a school faci li ty is in "good 
repair" and to rate the facility accordingly. 

The District should ensure that information concerning school facility conditions and the "good 
repair status" of facilities should use the most recent available data collected by the LEA The year 
and month in which the data were collected should also be identified 

EDC §35186 requires the district to report summarized data on the nature and resolution of all 
complaints regarding instructional materials , teacher vacancy or misassignment, or facilities 
conditions on a quarterly basis to the county superintendent of schools and the governing board of the 
school district. The quarterly report shall include the number of complaints by general subject area 
with the number of resolved and unresolved complaints. 

This information is also disseminated to the public in the annual SARC for each school site. 

Condition 
Information in the SARC was inconsistent with the information in the FIT because the tools do not 
contain the necessary elements to identify the good repair status of facilities . 

Information in the SARC on the nature and resolution of complaints regarding teacher vacancy or 
misassignment is inconsistent with the information in the quarterly complaint summaries . All four 
summaries were presented to the governing board during January 2014. They were not available for 
preparation of the SARC. 

Questioned Costs 
There is no questioned cost associated with this condition because there is no funding related to 
School Accountability Report Card. 

Context 
Except as noted in the next paragraph, the conditions identified apply to all schools . 

Schools ranked in deciles 1-3 are subject to monitoring under the Williams settlement legislation. 
Accordingly, an outside party performs the annual facilities inspection. The inspection tool used by 
the outside party contains all the elements in the OPSC FIT necessary to establish the good repair 
condition of the facilities . The outside party inspects approximately half of the school buildings. 
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Effect 
Information contained in the SARC may not be current. 

Cause 
The Distr ict did not have adequate internal controls to ensure that all information reported on the 
SARC accurately reflected the condition of the school facilities or that the Williams summaries are 
prepared timely. 

Recommendation 
The District should appoint a single person to obtain information from various departments involved 
in SARC compilation. 

The District should use the OPSC FIT template for the annual facilities inspection, instead of 
developing a proprietary form 

Furthermore, to ensure information on the nature and resolution of complaints regarding teacher 
vacancy or misass ignment is reflected in the SARC, the District should ensure the summary of 
Williams complaints is compiled quarterl y. A designated person should have this responsibility . 

Corrective Action Plan/District Response 
During 2014-1 5, the District enhanced its SARC process and procedures to ensure compliance and 
good record keeping by: 

• Working closely with the Faci lities department to ensure the use of the OPSC FIT report 
during 2015-16 for all school sites not monitored under the Williams settlement legislation; 

• Assigning one point of contact (Compliance Coordinator) in the State and Federal 
Compliance group to work with several departments to obtain various components for the 
SARC; 

• Developed a communication strategy to reach several departments in a uniformed/timely 
manner to enhance quality review time prior to completion of SARC. 

Also in 2014-2015 , State and Federal Compliance worked closely with the Office of the 
Ombudsperson to develop a process to ensure that all Williams complaints are completed, compiled, 
and presented to the Board in a timely manner. These procedures include: 

• Partnering with the Office of the Ombudsperson to receive copies of the reports submitted on 
a quarterly basis to the county superintendent and District governing board ; 

• Ensuring that the Office of the Ombudsperson presents the summarization data to the 
governing board on a quarterly basis at a regularly scheduled board meeting; 

• Working with the Office of the Ombudsperson to not only maintain a binder of Williams 
Complaints to ensure that Williams Complaint forms are made available for public requests 
and review, but to scan electronic versions of the forms and files as a secondary method for 
transparency and availability for public request 
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Summarized below is the current status of all audit findings reported in the prior year' s schedule of financial 
statement findings . 

Financial Statement Findings 

2012-1 Code 
30000, 60000 

Finding 
Associated Student Body Fund not presented and not audited . 

Current Status 
Not Implemented - See 2013 -1 . 

Federal Awards Findings 

2012-2 

2012-3 

2012-4 

Code 
30000, 60000 

Finding 
Inadequate support for salaries and wages charged to various Federal programs. 

Current Status 
Not Implemented - See 2013-8 

Code 
30000, 60000 

Finding 
Non-compliance with procurement, suspension and debarment requirements. 

Current Status 
Not Implemented - See 2013-3 . 

Code 
30000, 50000 

Finding 
Non-compliance with policies and procedures for equipment management. 

Current Status 
Not Implemented - See 2013-2 . 
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2012-5 

2012-6 

2012-7 

2012-8 

2012-9 

Code 
30000, 50000 

Finding 
Cash Management-Interest earned on federal funds not properly calculated or remitted . 

Current Status 
Implemented . 

Code 
30000, 50000 

Finding 
Title I, NCLB, Part A, Basic Grant Program; Title II , Improving Teacher Quality-Private school 
funding and services requirements not met 

Current Status 
Implemented . 

Code 
30000, 50000 

Finding 
Title I, NCLB, Part A, Basic Grant Program - Comparabi li ty requirements not met. 

Current Status 
Implemented. 

Code 
30000, 50000 

Finding 
Child Care and Development Program - eligibility record deficiencies. 

Current Status 
Not Implemented - See 2013-10 . 

Code 
30000, 50000 

Finding 
National School Lunch Program - Noncompliance with eligibility requirements . 

Current Status 
Implemented . 
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2012-10 Code 
30000, 50000 

Finding 
National School Lunch Program - Procurement - Noncompliance with policies and procedures -
minimum number of bids . 

Current Status 
Implemented . 

2012-11 Code 
30000, 50000 

Finding 
National School Lunch Program - Procurement - Geographical preference . 

Current Status 
Implemented . 

2012-12 Code 
30000, 50000 

Finding 
National School Lunch Program - Procurement - Independence of contract recipients . 

Current Status 
Implemented. 

2012-13 Code 
30000, 50000 

Finding 
Special Education Program - Individualized Education Plan (IEP) records not maintained . 

Current Status 
Not Implemented - See 2013-6 . 

State Awards Findings 

2012-14 Code 
10000, 30000 

Finding 
Attendance records not retained . 

Current Status 
Not Implemented - See 2013-12 . 
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2012-15 Code 
10000, 30000, 40000 

Finding 
Attendance report variances. 

Current Status 
Implemented . 

2012-16 Code 
10000, 30000 

Finding 
Attendance improperly reported by District. 

Current Status 
Implemented . 

2012-17 Code 
10000, 30000, 40000 

Finding 
Independent study program requirements compliance deficiencies . 

Current Status 
implemented . 

2012-18 Code 
30000, 40000 

Finding 
instructional time program deficiencies 

Current Status 
implemented. 

2012-19 Code 
30000, 40000, 71000, 72000 

Finding 
School Accountability Report Card (SARC) reporting inaccuracies. 

Current Status 
Not Implemented - See 2013- 13 . 
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2012-20 Code 
30000, 40000 

Finding 
Pertussis immunization records discrepancy. 

Current Status 
NI A for 20 12-13 . 

2012-21 Code 
30000, 40000 

Finding 
Class Size Reduction - reporting errors . 

Current Status 
Impl emented . 

2012-22 Code 
30000, 40000 

Finding 
Class Size Reduction - over reporting of eligible pupils . 

Current Status 
Implemented . 

2012-23 Code 
30000, 40000 

Finding 
After School Education and Safety Program Deficiencies - scope limitation in testing. 

Current Status 
Not Implemented - See 2013-11. 

2012-24 Code 
30000, 40000, 72000 

Finding 
After School Educat ion and Safety program and regular education program schedule discrepancies. 

Current Status 
Not Implemented - See 2013-11 . 
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